
           

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA Tuesday, April 25, 2017
Study Session 6:00 p.m.

Planning Commission Hearings 7:00 p.m.
                         James McGrade, Chair                   Art Willis, Vice Chair

   Pat Fox, Commission Member  Melanie Schlotterbeck, Commission Member   Jim Grosse, Commission Member

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item the Commission will consider. All Planning Commission decisions
may be appealed to the City Council within ten (10) calendar days of the meetings.  Please contact the City Clerk at (714)
990-7756 for further information about filing an appeal or obtaining an appeal application.

The Planning Department has on file copies of written documentation relating to each item of business on this Agenda available
for public inspection. Contact the Planning Department's Office at (714) 990-7674 or view the Agenda and related materials on
the City’s website at www.cityofbrea.net. Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution
of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Planning Department's Office at 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA
during normal business hours. Such documents may also be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post
documents before the meeting.

Procedures for Addressing the Commission
The Commission encourages free expression of all points of view. For record keeping purposes, if you wish to make a statement
regarding any item on the agenda, please complete the form located on the podium and deposit it with the secretary. To allow all
persons the opportunity to speak, please keep your remarks limited to five (5) minutes. If others have already expressed
your position, you may simply indicate that you agree with a previous speaker. If appropriate, a spokesperson may present the
views of your entire group. Commission rules prohibit clapping, booing or shouts of approval or disagreement from the audience. 
PLEASE SILENCE ALL PAGERS, CELL PHONES AND OTHER ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT WHILE COMMISSION IS IN
SESSION.

Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the Planning Department's Office at (714) 990-7674. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable City staff to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II)

  
ALL PLANNING COMMISSION DECISIONS MAY BE APPEALED TO THE CITY COUNCIL WITHIN TEN (10) CALENDAR
DAYS OF THE MEETING.  PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT (714) 990-7756 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ABOUT
FILING AN APPEAL OR OBTAINING AN APPEAL APPLICATION. 



             

STUDY SESSION
6:00 p.m. - Executive Conference Room, Level 3 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
1. Matters from the Audience
2. Agenda Items / Clarify Regular Meeting Topics
3. Informational / Project Updates

PLANNING COMMISSION
PUBLIC HEARINGS

7:00 p.m. - Council Chambers, Plaza Level

4. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COMMISSION
5. INVOCATION - Ryan H. Turner, Elders Quorum President

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Days Saints--Brea Hills Ward
6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
7. MATTERS FROM THE AUDIENCE
8.  

Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of March 28, 2017.

 
CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING

9.   CONSIDERATION OF ADDENDUM NO. 16-01, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 2016-178, PRECISE
DEVELOPMENT NO. 16-04, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NOS. 16-10 AND 16-11 FOR A PROPOSED MIXED
USE, IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT INCLUDING 747 RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS, 16,900 SQUARE FEET OF
COMMERCIAL TENANT SPACE AND A 150-ROOM HOTEL LOCATED ON AN APPROXIMATELY THIRTY-
ACRE SITE AT THE NORTHWEST AND NORTHEAST CORNERS OF BIRCH STREET AND STATE COLLEGE
BOULEVARD.

 
PUBLIC HEARING

10.   CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 17-03 – TO ALLOW A TACTICAL DEFENSE TRAINING BUSINESS IN
AN EXISTING OFFICE AND WAREHOUSE BUILDING LOCATED AT 615 NORTH BERRY STREET, SUITE I IN
THE M-1, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONE

 
NEW BUSINESS

11.   FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FINDING OF CONFORMANCE WITH THE
GENERAL PLAN

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
12. COMMITTEE REPORTS
13. INFORMATIONAL / PROJECT UPDATES
14. ADJOURNMENT



Agenda Item   8. 
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

DATE: 04/25/2017

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Jennifer A. Lilley, AICP, City Planner
 

Attachments
3.28.17 Minutes 



PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
STUDY SESSION
March 28, 2017

 

               

STUDY SESSION
6:30 p.m. - Executive Conference Room, Level 3 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL

Chair McGrade called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm.

Roll call: James McGrade, Art Willis, Pat Fox, Jim Grosse, Melanie Schlotterbeck.  All members
present.
 
 

1. Matters from the Audience

Opened/Closed
 

2. IT Training

City Planner Lilley introduced Randy Hornsby, IT Manager, to answer any IT questions that the
Commission would have. He went on to answer a few technical questions regarding Dropbox and
email. Mr. Hornsby offered one-on-one training to any Commissioner interested.

 

3. Agenda Items / Clarify Regular Meeting Topics

Chair McGrade asked the Commission if anyone had any questions for staff. Questions were asked
about the format of the Public Hearing.

 

4. Informational / Project Updates

None.

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION
PUBLIC HEARINGS

7:00 p.m. - Council Chambers, Plaza Level

 

5. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COMMISSION

Chair McGrade called the meeting to order at 7:10 pm.

Roll call taken.

Present: Jim Grosse, James McGrade, Pat Fox, Melanie Schlotterbeck, Art Willis 

6. INVOCATION -  Pat Hauser, Vicar at Christ Lutheran Church
 

7. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner Schlotterbeck led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

8. MATTERS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Opened/Closed
 

9. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion to approve minutes from February 28, 2017 made by Chair Willis, seconded by Commissioner
Grosse.

AYES: James McGrade, Art Willis, Pat Fox, Melanie Schlotterbeck,  and Jim Grosse.
Approval of February 28, 2017 Planning Commission Minutes.

City Planner Lilley announced that the requested administrative correction to the minutes of January
24, 2017 brought forth by Commissioner Fox had been made.

  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS
 
 

10. CONSIDERATION OF ADDENDUM NO. 16-01, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 2016-178,
PRECISE DEVELOPMENT NO. 16-04, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NOS. 16-10 AND
16-11 FOR A PROPOSED MIXED USE, IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT INCLUDING 747
RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS, 16,900 SQUARE FEET OF COMMERCIAL TENANT SPACE
AND A 150-ROOM HOTEL LOCATED ON AN APPROXIMATELY THIRTY- ACRE SITE AT
THE NORTHWEST AND NORTHEAST CORNERS OF BIRCH STREET AND STATE
COLLEGE BOULEVARD.

City Planner Lilley provided a brief summary and went on to clarify the format of the meeting.

Presentation made by Hines Development team.

The Commission asked the following questions of the Applicant:  

Jim Grosse: Do employees have access to building A? Where is shipping/receiving location?
Explain shared parking with Marketplace not related to legal right but usage. Further explain of
hotel operatations. Explain traffic shuttle.  

  

  



Melanie Schlotterbeck: Explain accessible guest parking. Electronic vehicle charging stations?
Address pedestrian traffic. Is there back-up emergency power?: Bike access on Paseo?  Bike
lane improvements on St. College and Birch? Will tree growth be affected by building shadow?
Are pedestrian connections open or gated?Explain safety inside parking structures.  Confirm
windows facing west let light in but are high enough for privacy. How do project residents get out
in an emergency?  
Art Willis:  Has the project considered Imperial Hwy traffic impacts? Has the project considered
Lambert/57 improvements? Confirm traffic pattern, improvements traveling south on St.
College?   
James McGrade:  Confirm bus turn outs north and south on St. Collage and Birch. Consider
meridian improvements on St. College. Confirm landscaping adjacent to Claim Jumper. All
landscape maintained by Hines? Architect to work on the massing to soften North West Corner
of St. College.  
Pat Fox:  Confirm traffic mitigation and improvements complete before occupancy: Consider
after hours security/gating from trail to Paseo.  Consider softening height of the north building;
Soften view of the structure from residents. Ensure overflow parking convenient parking for
guests?  
Jim Grosse:  Will parking be assigned? Confirm accessible handicap parking on all levels.  
Melanie Schlotterbeck:  Consider where bus pick up will be for schools. Will the project provide
childcare?

A ten  minute recess was called at 9:03pm.  Meeting resumed at 9:15 pm and  Chair McGrade
announced because of the number of speakers, speaking time would be limited to 3 minutes
to give everyone an opportunity to speak.

Speaker 1: Dr. Jim Schlott  What would Brea be today without progressive development? Isn't
redevelopment a good thing?
Speaker 2:  Bryan Starr, Supports project  given it provides needed housing.
Speaker 3: Anthony Kuo, Urges support of  project
Speaker 4: Todd Mobraten, Supports project,offering affordable  housing with access to their
interests and a live, work, play environment.
Speaker 5:John Drachman, Supports project to be able to attract and offer high quality jobs in
Brea.
Speaker 6: Barry Friedman, Feels numbers are incorrect. EIR needed.  Not enough parking.
Shadow created on residents property. Too dense. Reduce by half to 500 units. Keep parking
structure as is. Concern for property values and environmental impacts. Suggested to move
forward with the hotel. Insist on a new EIR. No construction to occur until after 57 Freeway
improvements are complete. 
Speaker 7: Zim Walker, Concerns with traffic. How was Chamber of Commerce able to get a
consensus? Adaptive traffic controls don't work.
Speaker 8: Sue Chen, Encourages support of project. Believes project will benefit the
community and their customers and employees.
Speaker 9: William Beeson, Doesn't feel housing is affordable. Crime will increase and wants
PD doubled. EIR is outdated. Traffic will increase. Project will bring cultural change.
Speaker 10: Barbara McDaniel, Feels traffic is horrible but is in favor of project.
Speaker 11: Matt Anderson, In favor of project. Appreciates innovative technology to find
solutions.
Speaker 12: Bill Murray, endorses project. Believes property owners have the right to develop
their property. Will have a positive long term impact.
Speaker 13: Tim Scott, concerned with adaptive technology for traffic. Wonders how trees will
be watered?
Speaker 14: James Harnish, traffic concerns, wants to keep small town atmosphere, impacts
of density
Speaker 15: Jason Kraft, Questions the peak hours in traffic study. How does project impact
school traffic? Concerns related to density, EIR, height of buildings. Will there be IT security
for traffic technology? The density is exceeded based on his calculations. Reduce to 432



for traffic technology? The density is exceeded based on his calculations. Reduce to 432
units.
Speaker 16: Judy Scott, Concerned hotel will bring crime.  Concerns with traffic construction,
parking, bus exhaust, bus pull outs, adaptive lighting and bike storage,
Speaker 17: Chris Reyes, Feels we are trying to turn Brea into an "Irvine". Quality of
life.  Wants a dog park. Concerns with parking structure loitering and noise. Feels resources
will be impacted
Speaker 18: Tom Lawless, read letter of support.
Speaker 19: Dwight Manley, spoke out against the Chambers involvement with the project.
Feels it's a beautiful project but not the right project as it is for Brea. Has concerns with
services, water and freeway impacts. Questions the math for the income to the City.
Speaker 20: Sean Ross, supports the project. Worked on similar project in Fullerton and there
were no significant impacts, Feels mixed use project will help reduce crime.
Speaker 21: Keith Fullington, Feels the supporters of the project work for Hines. Don't need
more cars. Concerns with Chamber supporting the project.
Speaker 22: Drew Huffman, speaking on behalf of Waad Nadir, in favor of project.  A great
compliment to the city. Conforms to the General Plan.
Speaker 23: Christine Perez, can't afford to live in Brea. Grandmother lives behind Hines and
is affected by noise and fallen trees.
Speaker 24:  Scott Peterson on behalf of Jonathan Eckno, supports project and feels that
Hines has taken neighbors concerns into consideration.
Speaker 25: Ken Salazar, Wants a full EIR. Wants a smaller development below 500, that
includes condos for sale and apartments. Lower the height two to three stories. Keep
parking structure at two stories.
Speaker 26: Doug Matthews, liked the presentation. Has concerns about water and
infrastructure. Stands opposed.
Speaker 27: Terry Salinski, wants to lessen impact for neighbors. Precedent is two-three
stories maximum.
Speaker 28: Katherine Ingersoll, Speaking on behalf of a former Planning Commissioner,
Ralph Heiman, he was involved in the approval of the 2003 General Plan and accepted the
accompanying EIR. He said the Commission made a tradeoff and accepted higher density
here for lower densities on the hillsides. A good compromise at the time and still holds true
today. Opposed to revisiting the EIR. Supports the project.
Speaker 29: Maaka Nua, Concerns about traffic volume and capacity. Wants smaller project.
Speaker 30: Anita Cruz, Concerned by five story project, shadows, privacy, noise and property
values. Urges changes to be made for the Commission to approve.
Speaker 31: Bill Madden, EIR, CO2 hotspot, suggests long term monitoring system
established by the City.
Speaker 32: Joanie Bozzone, Speaking on behalf of Joseph Carbello. Brea needs more
housing and hotel and conference space. Ideal location for mixed use project
Speaker 33: John O'Malley on behalf of David S. George, Supports project, much needed
housing, multi-use aspects will enhance quality of life. Conforms to land use guidelines.
Speaker 34: John Koos, He recalls the City Council and Planning Commission  in 2003 set
forth the land use designation for this property.  City Leaders have been planning on this for
20 years.

Hines Development Team responded to questions from the Commission and provided
a rebuttal in response to comments:
  

Shade study prepared for Fall, Winter, Spring and Summer;
There have not been multiple community meetings canceled by Hines; 
Rents will range from $1300 to $3000;
To ensure safety and reduce crime, robust security will be on site;
There will be irrigation and maintenance for trees;
CC & R's and on-site management will ensure balconies are used appropriately



$2.1 million in income to the City each year; and
The height has been reduced to three-story closest to neighbors on Avocado.

City Planner Lilley asked the Chair if the Commission would please submit any new questions within
the week  to allow staff  time to research  any new details and report back.

Chair McGrade made a motion to close public hearing and continue the item for deliberations to
the next regularly scheduled meeting on April 25, 2017. Commissioner Schlotterbeck seconded. The
motion passed with a unanimous vote of 5-0.

John Erskine asked the Chair if they could request a resolution be brought to the next meeting. 
Assistant City Attorney Flower stated the Commission would need to deliberate  prior to any resolutions
being presented.

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS

 
 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS

None.
 

 

12. INFORMATIONAL / PROJECT UPDATES

City Planner Lilley stated that any comments or letters that were given to the Commission this evening
would be part of the public record and available upon request as well as on the City website.
 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT

Chair McGrade made a motion to adjourn at 10:52 pm.
 

 

Respectfully submitted, The foregoing minutes are hereby
approved this ____ day of _____________

_________________________________     
Jennifer A. Lilley, City Planner

________________________________     
James McGrade, Chair



Agenda Item   9. 
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

FROM: Jennifer Lilley, 

DATE: 04/25/2017

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF ADDENDUM NO. 16-01, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO.
2016-178, PRECISE DEVELOPMENT NO. 16-04, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NOS. 16-10 AND
16-11 FOR A PROPOSED MIXED USE, IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT INCLUDING 747 RESIDENTIAL
APARTMENTS, 16,900 SQUARE FEET OF COMMERCIAL TENANT SPACE AND A 150-ROOM
HOTEL LOCATED ON AN APPROXIMATELY THIRTY- ACRE SITE AT THE NORTHWEST AND
NORTHEAST CORNERS OF BIRCH STREET AND STATE COLLEGE BOULEVARD.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
BACKGROUND
The Planning Commission received the staff report, associated materials and a staff presentation regarding the
proposed Brea Place project and related actions at the February 28, 2017 meeting. The Commission received
public testimony and continued the public hearing to March 28, 2017. At this meeting, the Planning Commission
received a written staff report, the applicant’s presentation, public testimony, the applicant’s rebuttal and
responses to initial questions.  The Commission closed the public hearing and continued the item to April 25,
2017 to commence its deliberations on the project.  
 
DISCUSSION
 
To assist with the Commission’s deliberations the following is a summary of information previously provided or
additional information related to the components of the review and consideration for this application.  Staff has
provided the information in the order the Commission could review and act on these matters.  The remaining
tasks for the Commission include:
 
• Provide direction for the environmental clearance; 
• Review the additional questions Commissioners and posed to Staff and determine if further information is
needed; 
• Commission deliberation;
• Confirm desired action for project;
• Direct staff regarding required findings for proposed actions; and  
• Direct staff to finalize any desired conditions of approval, if project approval is contemplated.  
 
Environmental Analysis: Clarification and information has been provided related to the environmental clearance
for the project.  A memorandum, dated March 16, 2017 was provided to the Commission and has been attached
to this report, see Attachment 1.  Additionally, the City Attorney has provided a legal review and determination
related to on-going questions and concerns regarding the process and environmental approach and that
memorandum is attached to this report, see Attachment 2.  
 
Additional Questions from the Commission:  The Commission had questions related to the project following the
March 28 meeting.  The following provides those questions and the support information or responses from our
technical team.  
 
1. PREVIOUS ENTITLEMENTS

a. What was approved to be built on the north parcel for Lowe Development Co. Property through prior
entitlements? 

 
The Development Agreement 89-2 approved a four-story or 72 foot tall office building including
approximately 90,000 square feet of leasable area and a 55 foot tall, 6,000 square foot restaurant building. 



approximately 90,000 square feet of leasable area and a 55 foot tall, 6,000 square foot restaurant building. 

 
2. BUS ROUTES

a. What and how many bus routes from Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) or others go
by/stop at the Hines (Brea Place) project on Birch Street or State College Boulevard? 

 
There are three lines which go by/stop at the Hines (Brea Place) project.  These include: Routes 129, 143
and 213.  Foothill Transit also has one line stopping at the Hines project.  This is Route 286. 

 
b. How many buses from OCTA or others stop at the Birch or State College bus stops each day.

 
There are approximately 55 total buses stopping at the project site per day.  The 129 makes 19 stops per
day, the 143 makes 15 stops per day and the 213 makes 4 stops daily at this location.  The Foothill Transit
line makes 17 stops per day.

 
3. BUS DIESEL EMISSIONS/ AIR QUALITY:  

a. I know OCTA has been converting its fleet to CNG.  Are all of them converted on the routes by the
Hines Project? 

 
Yes.  OCTA completed the process of converting its active bus fleet to CNG Winter 2016 for commuter
buses.  This includes all buses operating in Brea.  They still have some LNG buses in their fleet but those
are not used in Brea. 

 
b. What about the other bus lines from non-OC based transportation agencies (i.e. LA. Metro, SBCTA)? 

 
Foothill Transit uses CNG buses. There are no LA Metro or SBCTA lines using these stops at this time. 

 
c. If they are diesel buses are there idling standards in the City of Brea? 
 
The buses are no longer diesel.  
 
d. Are there any CO mitigation measures that could be considered to reduce the hotspot at Lambert and
State College?  I’m thinking specifically of the CAPCOA list.  
Brea Place will comply with the 2003 General Plan EIR Mitigation Measures 1, 2, 4 and 5 for air quality
which are:
 
Mitigation Measure 1. The City shall reduce vehicle emissions caused by traffic congestion by
implementing transportation systems management techniques that include synchronized traffic signals and
limiting on-street parking.
 
A draft condition of approval has been added for consideration to implement management techniques
including signalization adaptive controls, improvements to the intersections, addition of dedicated turning
lanes, traffic management techniques, wayfinding and other congestion management strategies.  
 
Mitigation Measure 2. The City shall encourage major employers, tenants in business parks and other
activity centers, and developers of large new developments to participate in transportation management
associations.
 
A draft condition of approval could be added for consideration to require the participation in a
transportation management association that could include transportation shuttles, vehicle share programs,
carpooling and other transportation solutions.
 
Mitigation Measure 4. The City will encourage the incorporation of energy conservation techniques (i.e.
installation of energy saving devices, construction of electric vehicle charging stations, use of
sunlight-filtering window coatings or double-paned windows, utilization of light-colored materials as
opposed to dark-colored roofing materials, and placement of shady trees next to habitable structures) in
new developments. 
 
A draft condition of approval has been added for consideration to include the installation of electric vehicle



charging stations, modified materials and color palate and California native plantings to conserve energy
and resources.
 
Mitigation Measure 5. The City will encourage the incorporation of bus stands, bicycle racks, bicycle lanes,
and other alternative transportation related infrastructure in new developments.  

A draft condition of approval has been added for consideration to improve bus shelters, install bicycle
racks, improve bike lanes, pedestrian paths and incorporate shuttle operations to encourage alternative
transportation.  
 
At the time of this publication, staff is awaiting additional information from the California Air Pollution
Controls Officers Association.  Staff will provide this information as soon as it is available.     

 
Finally, the CO hotspot was discussed in detail as part of the Addendum.  A response was provided by the
technical team regarding this issue.  In summary, the Air Quality Master Plan has shown emissions have
continued to decline since 2003 (the time of the latest AQMP hot spot analysis and the City of Brea
General Plan EIR). According to ground-level emissions concentration data collected by the California Air
Resources Board, 8-hour CO emissions have declined at the La Habra Monitoring Station to below 3.0
parts per million (ppm) (the State and Federal Ambient Air Quality Standard for 8-hour CO is 9 ppm). Due
to these declines, CO is no longer monitored at this station or at any other monitoring stations in the Basin.
For additional information, please see Attachment 3.

 
4. ADAPTIVE TRAFFIC CONTROL
 

a. Does the ATC technology require investment in resources by the City?  (i.e. new software/hardware,
staffing, training) 

 
The ATC technology requires acquisition of new software, new hardware and training of City staff.  No new
staff will be necessary. 

 
b. If so, is the applicant paying for this investment and training? 

 
Yes.  A draft condition has been included to require the applicant/property owner to fund all costs
associated with the ATC system.  This would include any potential software, hardware, maintenance and
staff training.

 
c. A speaker Tuesday night mentioned the ATC being only on State College and not responding to the
“side” traffic from say Avocado.  Is this accurate? 

 
No, this is not accurate.  The system will allow for full coordination with side street/Avocado timing and
traffic control.  

 
d. Urban Infill projects tend to have a lower traffic generation if they include mixed uses in/nearby.  In other
built MU-1, 2 or 3 areas, how have the traffic projections compared to the actual traffic?  

 
The City of Brea does not have comparisons of traffic projections to actual traffic.  While we have several
traffic studies to forecast project volumes for mixed use projects addressing the “real life” condition once a
project is built is not an industry practice.  Instead, the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) manual
provides actual monitoring data to validate trip generation rates for land use types. These studies provide
factual comparisons of projections and trip data collected from developed land use projects.   So the best
data and the Best Industry Practice is to use the ITE to determine actual trips and traffic.  All the tested,
real life, observational data goes into the ITE used in modeling for the Traffic Impact Analysis prepared for
the Hines Addendum to not only model this project but to assess comparisons with actual traffic data.  

 
5. 57 FREEWAY PROJECT:  

a. We heard the 57 Freeway was in the design phase? Is it entirely funded yet by OCTA?
 

The 57 Freeway is in the plans and engineers specifications review phase, this means there is a full set of
plans and specifications.  The project will be funded by State funding via the State Transportation
Improvements Program, Measure M funds through OCTA and Brea Traffic Impact fees (57/Lambert Road



Interchange Project, CIP 7251).  Based on our current CIP budget projections, Brea’s portion will be fully
funded by 2020/21.  

 
6. PARKING

a. For other projects of similar size/scope/density, what have the parking space averages been (what are
the projects/locations/parking allocations)?

 
The following table provides a comparison of similar projects. It is important to note that each project is
unique and may not be an exact comparison to the project or the context.  Also it is important to note the
numbers provided below are from the approved plans, entitlement records and parking studies prepared
for projects as applicable.  It is possible there is variation with what was built.  However, for the purpose of
responding to the question above, this is the most accurate information of record. 

 
b. The applicant notes the Hines Project is at 1.78 spaces on average.  Is this accurate?  

 
Yes, there are 1,327 parking spaces provided for the residential portion of the project resulting in 1.78
spaces per unit.  

 
7. POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES:  
 

a. We heard testimony that additional police/fire protection was needed.  What have the assessments by
Brea Police/Fire been of the additional demand this project adds to their ability to meet the needs of the
City?  

 
The 2003 General Plan EIR and the subsequent EIR Addendum prepared for the proposed Hines project
identified that development would place additional demands upon Police and Fire resources.  Both



identified that development would place additional demands upon Police and Fire resources.  Both
Departments routinely manage resources and work programs to assure appropriate levels of service will
be maintained for current development and residents together with any new development demands.  The
City has also adopted and implements a Nexus Fee Program that requires all new development to pay its
pro-rata share toward Fire Department related impacts and costs of providing additional facilities,
equipment, etc. to serve the community.  In summary, the proposed project would not exceed the buildout
projections of population or overall housing units identified in the General Plan such that a significantly
increased need for police or fire services would occur.    

 
b. In other MU-1, 2 or 3 projects statistically how do they compare to residential neighborhoods with crime
rates?  

 
Crime and service call demand is highly dependent on many factors.  Determining whether or not a specific
type of development will lead to an increase in crime is complex.  To simply state that any apartment
building will always create a dramatic increase in crime is problematic.   An FBI report has been attached,
see Attachment 4, explaining the variables affecting crime and caution related to ranking or using data to
compare or contrast crime.   

 
8. WATER SUPPLY: 
 

a. I recall that this project (at the higher density) was included in the City’s Water Plan.  Is that true?  
 

Yes.  The Water Master Plan takes into account all land uses assumed and considered by the 2003
General Plan Update. The EIR Addendum additionally reviewed the current water demand and supply to
update data from the 2003 General Plan EIR. In summary, the analysis found the City’s Urban Water
Master Plan (UWMP) remains viable and documents the City’s projected potable water demand and
supply, including accommodating the Brea Place project.

 
9. NOISE

a. I recall that this project estimated its noise to be within the City’s standards (both the General Plan and
the Municipal Code).  Is that true?

 
Yes.  Brea Place is required to comply with the Brea Municipal Code and General Plan Noise and Land
Use Compatibility Guidelines as described in pages 6-36 to 6-47 of the General Plan. The applicant has
also presented a management and security plan to ensure loitering, noise translating to nuisance and other
noise issues will be addressed and managed to ensure compliance with City standards.  

 
b. Are there any conditions on other MU-1, 2, or 3 projects about noise or retail activity?

 
We do not know of any conditions on other projects related to noise the residential component would have
on adjacent land uses.  There are several examples of noise impacts from external factors on residential
mixed use development.  And there are examples of limiting loading and receiving supplies at retail
businesses within mixed use development.  This would include La Floresta, Gateway and Birch Street
Promenade.    

 
Project Analysis:  The Commission has received a full technical review of the project included in previous staff
reports and presentations.  The project is found to be in compliance with the General Plan and the Zoning
standards for this property.  The project has been recommended for approval.  This information can be found in
the Commission packets from the February and March public hearings.  
 
Correspondence Received:  All correspondence received from March 28, 2017 to date have been included as
Attachment 5 and include emails or letters received by staff.  
 
Resolution/Findings/Conditions of Approval:  The Commission will need to provide direction to prepare
Resolutions for the project.  Findings for the various entitlements are attached to this report for your
consideration, see Attachment 6.  Preliminary conditions of approval have been drafted and were previously
provided for the Commission’s consideration.  During the Commission’s discussion during the March 28, 2017
hearing several comments or suggestions were raised by Commissioners which potentially lend themselves to
adding to or refining these conditions of approval.  The original list of conditions have been attached to this
report, see Attachment 7.  Staff awaits direction form the Commission for additions or refinements to finalize this



list.  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Jennifer A. Lilley, AICP, City Planner

Attachments
ATTACHMENT 1.ENVIRONMENTAL MEMORANDUM, MARCH 16, 2017 
ATTACHMENT 2. RWG MEMORANDUM, APRIL 13, 2017 
ATTACHMENT 3. CARBON MONOXIDE HOTSPOT MEMORANDUM 
ATTACHMENT 4. FBI VARIABLES AFFECTING CRIME MEMORANDUM 
ATTACHMENT 5. CORRESPONDENCE 
ATTACHMENT 6. FINDINGS 
ATTACHMENT 7. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 



 

 
 
 
 
               
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: David Crabtree, AICP, Community Development Director 
 
BY:  Jennifer A. Lilley, AICP, City Planner 
 
CC:  Steven Flower, Deputy City Attorney 
 
DATE: March 16, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: CEQA PROCESS CLARIFICATIONS REGARDING THE PROPOSED BREA 

PLACE PROJECT   
 
This memorandum clarifies California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) related items in general and 
specifically addressed in the Brea Place project staff report dated 2.28.17.  It is being provided in 
advance of the Commission’s next meeting to assist you in your review of the CEQA analysis and 
project materials.  In summary, the environmental checklist process, the requirement for new and 
updated technical studies to assess impacts and the expanded review process for the Hines 
application serve to respect the legal requirements of CEQA as well as the City’s commitment to 
informing the public beyond the legal minimum.  
 
What is the purpose of CEQA?  
 

 Inform decision makers and the public about the potential environmental effects of proposed 
projects.   

 Identify ways environmental impacts can be avoided or reduced. 
 Prevent significant environmental impacts by requiring mitigation measures where feasible. 

 
Decision-makers must consider the environmental analysis as part of their process but are not bound 
to approve or deny a project based on the findings of the CEQA analysis. CEQA is an informational 
and disclosure process designed to assist in the consideration of projects. 
 
Why Addendum and not a new EIR? 
 

 CEQA requires consideration of any prior EIRs relevant to proposed development projects, if 
any such EIRs exist.   

 CEQA requires review of new evidence to determine if changes in the project or its 
circumstances require changes to the EIR due to new information that shows there will be new 
or greater impacts.   

 When considering prior EIRs, CEQA does not require a new initial study.   

CITY OF BREA
Community Development 

Building & Safety
Economic Development

Planning

MEMORANDUM

ATTACHMENT 1



   
 In this case, the initial study environmental checklist and new technical studies were used to 

evaluate potential environmental impacts that could arise based on new information .   
 
The 2003 General Plan EIR analyzed the environmental impacts for changes considered at that time, 
including the Brea Place mixed use site.  This EIR is relevant for the Hines project and must be 
considered based on environmental practice, legislation, and applicable case law.   
 
Does the environmental analysis rely on outdated data? 
 

 The Addendum does not rely solely on 2003 technical studies prepared for the General Plan, 
but the 2003 EIR does provide the baseline for the current CEQA analysis. 

 The Addendum also relies on new technical studies, including a new Traffic Impact Study, to 
assess whether changes to the project or its circumstances might result in new or greater 
impacts than were previously analyzed. 

 
The Addendum prepared for the Hines project includes current technical studies considering existing 
environmental conditions.  For example, a new traffic impact analysis was prepared and peer 
reviewed by third party experts.  Focused studies/analyses including hydrology, water quality, sewer 
capacity and air quality were also performed and are attachments to the Addendum.     

Was an Initial Study prepared? 

The February 28 Staff Report noted the preparation of an “Initial Study”.  CEQA generally defines an 
Initial Study as: 
 

 “…a preliminary analysis prepared by the lead agency to determine whether an EIR or 
a negative declaration must be prepared or to identify the significant environmental 
effects to be analyzed in an EIR.”   

CEQA does not require a formal “initial study” when a prior EIR has been prepared that may be 
applied to a project.   

As provided by CEQA, a step in this analysis is to determine whether a previously approved EIR could 
be used with the project.  

 In order to confidently determine whether an Addendum would be appropriate, the Addendum 
follows the environmental checklist and new technical studies were prepared and analyzed.  

 As explained by the Deputy City Attorney during the staff presentation, the “initial study” 
referred to in the staff report was the environmental check list process outlined in CEQA.     

 
Does an Addendum eliminate the CEQA Public Review process?  
 

 An Addendum is a public document and must be considered by the Commission during the 
public hearing, but CEQA does not require a formal public circulation of an Addendum. 

 The City has made the Addendum and all related studies available to the public and the 
Planning Commission for review and consideration prior to the public hearing and any action 
on the proposed project. 

 The Planning Commission has continued its consideration of the Addendum and project 
entitlements 30 days to allow for more complete review and understanding of the Addendum 
and other project information. 

 The public has been encouraged to ask questions, identify any concerns and provide 
information on the project prior to the Planning Commission’s decision. 

 Staff has been working to address questions and clarify information.    
 
 



















Carbon Monoxide Hotspots 

Carbon monoxide (CO) emissions are a function of vehicle idling time, meteorological conditions, 
and traffic flow.  Under certain extreme meteorological conditions, CO concentrations near a 
congested roadway or intersection may reach unhealthful levels (i.e., adversely affecting 
residents, school children, hospital patients, the elderly, etc.).  The SCAQMD requires a quantified 
assessment of CO hotspots when a project increases the volume-to-capacity ratio (also called 
the intersection capacity utilization) by 0.02 (two percent) for any intersection with an existing level 
of service LOS D or worse.  Because traffic congestion is highest at intersections where vehicles 
queue and are subject to reduced speeds, these hot spots are typically produced at intersections. 

The South Coast Air Basin (Basin) is designated as an attainment/maintenance area for the 
Federal CO standards and an attainment area for State standards.  There has been a decline in 
CO emissions even though vehicle miles traveled on U.S. urban and rural roads have increased. 
On-road mobile source CO emissions have declined 24 percent between 1989 and 1998, despite 
a 23 percent rise in motor vehicle miles traveled over the same 10 years.  California trends have 
been consistent with national trends; CO emissions declined 20 percent in California from 1985 
through 1997 while vehicle miles traveled increased 18 percent in the 1990s.  CO emissions have 
continued to decline since this time.  The Basin was re-designated as attainment in 2007, and is 
no longer addressed in the SCAQMD’s Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP).  Three major 
control programs have contributed to the reduced per-vehicle CO emissions: exhaust standards, 
cleaner burning fuels, and motor vehicle inspection/maintenance programs.   

A detailed CO analysis was conducted in the Federal Attainment Plan for Carbon Monoxide (CO 
Plan) for the SCAQMD’s 2003 Air Quality Management Plan.  The 2003 Air Quality Management 
Plan is the most recent AQMP that addresses CO concentrations.  The locations selected for 
microscale modeling in the CO Plan are worst-case intersections in the Basin, and would likely 
experience the highest CO concentrations.  Thus, CO analysis within the CO Plan is utilized in a 
comparison to the proposed Project, since it represents a worst-case scenario with heavy traffic 
volumes within the Basin. 

Of these locations, the Wilshire Boulevard/Veteran Avenue intersection in Los Angeles 
experienced the highest CO concentration (4.6 parts per million [ppm]), which is well below the 
35-ppm 1-hr CO Federal standard.  The Wilshire Boulevard/Veteran Avenue intersection is one
of the most congested intersections in Southern California with an average daily traffic (ADT)
volume of approximately 100,000 vehicles per day.  As the CO hotspots were not experienced at
the Wilshire Boulevard/Veteran Avenue intersection (one of the busiest intersections in the Basin),
it can be reasonably inferred that CO hotspots would not be experienced at any intersections
within the City of Brea near the project site.  Therefore, impacts would be less than significant in
this regard.

Additionally, emissions have continued to decline since 2003 (the time of the latest AQMP hot 
spot analysis and the City of Brea General Plan EIR).  According to ground-level emissions 
concentration data collected by the California Air Resources Board, 8-hour CO emissions have 
declined at the La Habra Monitoring Station to below 3.0 parts per million (ppm) (the State and 
Federal Ambient Air Quality Standard for 8-hour CO is 9 ppm). Due to these declines, CO is no 
longer monitored at this monitoring station or at any other monitoring stations in the Basin.   

The General Plan EIR identified potential impacts associated with CO hot spots at the Central 
Avenue/Puente Street, Central Avenue/Berry Street, Brea Boulevard/Imperial Boulevard, and 
Lambert Road/SR-57 intersections.  Mitigation measures were identified to reduce these impacts; 

ATTACHMENT 3



however, the EIR conservatively determined that impacts would remain significant and 
unavoidable due to the uncertain nature of the future uses.  The proposed project is located at 
the intersection of State College Boulevard and Birch Street and does not place sensitive 
receptors in proximity to potential CO hotspots (i.e., the project is not located near any of the 
intersections identified in the General Plan EIR).   
 
Additionally, according to the project Traffic Impact Analysis, impacts to intersections would be 
less than significant with the implementation of the recommended mitigation measures (i.e., 
restriping and signalization of the project driveways) and the project would not cause increase the 
volume-to-capacity ratio (also called the intersection capacity utilization) by 0.02 (two percent) for 
any intersection with an existing level of service LOS D or worse.  Therefore, a CO hot spot impact 
would not occur. 
 
 
 











































ATTACHMENT 6 
 

1 
 

UFindings for proposed actions U– To assist the Commission in its deliberations, Staff has 
provided an outline of the specific findings the Commission must consider in order to act upon the 
various entitlements associated with the proposed project.  These findings must be backed by 
facts.  Facts may be provided within written reports, staff presentations, applicant presentations, 
public testimony, technical studies and analysis and other aspects of the hearing. 
 

Precise Development: This is an administrative action by the Planning Commission.  Per City 
Code, the intent and purpose is to ensure objectives of the land use designation of the General 
Plan and the development standards of the Zone are met.   

Findings: When determining a Precise Development application, the Planning Commission must 
find if additional requirements or conditions are appropriate or needed to further the objectives of 
the General Plan or as needed to protect the public safety and general welfare of the community.   

Conditional Use Permit: The Conditional Use Permit is intended for land uses which require 
special consideration in a particular zone or in the city as a whole. The Planning Commission 
must consider the land use or operations and ensure compatibility with the zone and the adjacent 
properties and to add conditions of approval to improve the manner in which the use interacts 
with surrounding land uses.  

Findings: When determining a Conditional Use Permit, the Commission shall make the following 
findings: 

 
1. That the use(s) applied for at the location set forth in the application is properly one(s) for 

which a Conditional Use Permit is authorized by this title. 
 

2. That said use(s) with any conditions to be imposed is necessary or desirable for the 
development of the community, in harmony with the various elements or objectives of the 
General Plan, and not detrimental to existing uses or to uses specifically permitted in the 
zone in which the proposed use(s) is to be located. 
 

3. That the site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the proposed development 
and all of the yards, setbacks, walls or fences, landscaping, and other features required 
to bring about conformity with other elements in the neighborhood. 
 

4. That the proposed site relates to streets and highways which are properly designed and 
improved to carry the type and quantity of traffic generated or to be generated by the 
proposed development. 
 

5. That with the conditions stated in the permit, the uses will not adversely affect the public 
health, safety, or general welfare.  Such conditions may include, but are not limited to: 

 
a. Special setbacks, yards, open spaces and buffers; 
b. Fences and walls; 
c. Lighting; 
d. Surfacing of off-street parking and loading areas; 
e. Requiring street dedications and street improvements, including service roads and 

alleys when necessary and practical; 
f. Regulations of points of vehicular ingress and egress; 



ATTACHMENT 6 
 

2 
 

g. Regulation of signs; 
h. Regulation of time for certain activities; 
i. Requiring landscaping and maintenance thereof; 
j. Requiring maintenance of grounds; 
k. Regulation of noise, vibration, odors, dust; 
l. Time period within which the proposed use shall be developed; 
m. A bond for removal of such use within a specified period of time; and 
n. Such other conditions as are necessary to protect existing or potential users in the 

area. 
 
Tentative Parcel Map: The intent and purpose of 0T a 0Ttentative parcel map0T 0Tis to ensure that 
subdivisions of land into four residential0T 0Tparcels0T 0Tor fewer, or for commercial or industrial 
purposes, are consistent with the General Plan, Zoning and the California Subdivision 0T 0TMap0T 0TAct. 
The Planning Commission reviews a map request to determine the land is suitable for the 
subdivision, consistent with local and State land use law and in compliance with the subdivision 
map act and the City’s subdivision ordinance.  
 
Findings:  As required in the City Municipal Code 18.60.030., the Planning Commission shall 
make the following findings when determining the map request: 

1. The proposed map is consistent with applicable general and specific plans; 

2. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with applicable 
general aid specific plans; 

3. The site is physically suitable for the type of development; 

4. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development; 

5. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements is not likely to cause 
substantial environmental damage or substantially unavoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat; 

6. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is likely to cause serious public 
health problems; 

7. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 

 
 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

1 

 

 

DRAFT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Staff have identified draft conditions of approval which are recommended to be included within 

any project approval by the Planning Commission.  Condition language would be finalized and 

incorporated within resolution(s) of any Commission action at the conclusion of any project 

approval.   

 

Voluntary Traffic Improvement Measures -  

Adaptive Traffic Control System: The system provided technology for the signalized 
intersections along State College Boulevard from Imperial Highway to Lambert Road.  
Benefits are described as including:  

o Reductions in number of stops  
o Smoothing of average travel speed 
o Reduction of greenhouse gases 
o Reduction in number of crashes 

 
Connected Vehicle Technology Infrastructure: This system is utilized to improve commute 
times as well as enhance driver safety on the roadways via information transmission 
technology as well as communication between vehicle and traffic signal. Benefits include: 
 

o Allow a traffic signal to communicate with the driver to provide timing on green, 
yellow, and red status 

o Provides travel time information to allow drivers to operate in a more efficient 
manner 

o Alternate routes can automatically be provided in vehicles that have the technology 
to improve commute times 

o Travel times along State College Blvd. and Imperial Hwy & Lambert Rd. can be 
provided to drivers and the system can be set up to where alternate routes are 
immediately published to provide alternative route options to the driver 

 

Wayfinding and Congestion Avoidance Program:  Signage and circulation management and 
communication plan to direct people on-site to specific entrances or exits during peak periods 
to reduce congestion. 

 

Holiday Traffic Parking & Shuttle Plan:  Will serve to coordinate with Simon Properties and 
potential other nearby commercial properties to facilitate a holiday season overflow parking 
area on Brea Place surface parking, and providing a passenger shuttle program to reduce 
traffic on City streets during the busy November and December holiday season. 

 

Dedicated Right Turn Lane:  Applicant will provide for the construction of a free-flowing lane 
for southbound traffic on State College to make the west bound right turn movement on to 
Birch Street.  



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

2 

 

Relocation and related improvements for Transit Stops on State College Blvd.:  These 
improvements shall provide for bus loading and unloading without impeding the traffic 
movement in the travel lane.  

 
Modify existing signal phasing: On State College Boulevard and Birch Street within the project 
vicinity to provide optimal traffic movement. 
 
Increased width for project entry driveways on State College Blvd. and Birch Street:  This 
improvement will allow for reduced deceleration and acceleration needs within the travel lanes 
of these streets, reducing traffic flow impacts.   

 

Tree Planting on Tracks: Planting and maintenance of specimen sized screening trees within 
the Tracks at Brea trail area adjacent to the project.   
 

Landscape Improvements: Specific review and improvements for final landscape and outdoor 
amenities plans for common areas. 
 

Hotel Operator: Insuring the proposed Hotel is afforded quality facilities and operational 
characteristics. 
 

Universal Design: Including Universal Design features within the residential units. 

 

The complete list of draft conditions of approval is provided below: 

PD & CUPs 

a. Development shall occur in substantial conformance with the plans and specifications 
submitted to the Planning Commission and dated February 28, 2017; site plan, floor plans, 
elevations, conceptual architectural elevations and associated details, conceptual 
landscape plans, conceptual wall and fence elevations, HWA Parking study, Sustainable 
Plan, etc. are all on file in the Planning Division, the conditions contained herein, and all 
applicable City regulations.  

 
b. The Project Proponent shall prepare a digital copy (suitable for archival storage) of the 

plans and specifications noted in Condition “a.”  This product shall be received by the Brea 
Planning Division prior to the issuance of any building permits for the development. 

 
 
COMMERCIAL USE  
 

c. Commercial uses within Buildings A and B shall fundamentally be project and 
neighborhood serving, and aligning with the project descriptions, characterizations, and 
vision statements expressed by the applicant and conveyed within the staff report, the 
presentation to the Planning Commission, the plans and specifications and the whole of 
the record, subject to the review and approval of the City Planner.  Nothing in this condition 
shall be construed to limit commercial customers to be generated from on-site, but shall 
generally achieve the goal to focus on uses aligned with Mixed Use principals for services 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

3 

 

and retail uses in convenient proximity to residences and offices for use by residents and 
office workers.       

 
HOTEL RELATED 
 

d. The approved hotel shall include architecture, public and guest room amenities, and 
features and operational characteristics consistent with the specifications and descriptions 
contained in the exhibits and information provided by the applicant.  Said architecture, 
amenities, features and operational characteristics shall include: 

 
1. Separate dining and bar areas with full meal and alcoholic beverage service 
2. Conference meeting room, available to hotel guests and outside groups with a 

capacity conducive to use for local service clubs. 
3. Public room/lobby area(s) with features promoting guest gathering in a comfortable 

and inviting design with amenities and features such as conversation seating, wi-
fi service, reading areas, fireplace, food and beverage service, etc. 

4. Improved and enhanced public guest amenities including swimming pool, health 
club/spa, outdoor seating and gathering areas with fire pit, bocce court, or similar 
features.  

5. Exterior and interior architectural design incorporating a local Brea/Orange 
County/Southern California, inspired and comprehensive design approach which 
provides the building and facilities a distinction from generic hotel branding and 
design features. 

 
Final consistency with this condition shall be subject to the review and approval of the City 
Planner prior to the issuance of construction permits.    
 

ARCHITECTURE, LANDSCAPE AND DESIGN AND OPERATIONS 
 
e. Final Architectural plans and details shall be provided for the review and approval of the 

City Planner prior to the issuance of a construction permit.  Architecture and design 
features shall be consistent with the specifications and details provided to the Planning 
Commission and shall include high quality materials, finishes, with complementing color 
palette.  Any use of stucco surfacing within the development shall be smooth finished and 
final specifications and field samples shall be provided.   

 
f. Final architectural and landscape design options for Building A and for Site 1 and 

respective design and details near the NWC of Birch Street and State College Blvd shall 
return for the administrative review and approval of the Planning Commission within a 
Study Session meeting prior to the issuance of a construction permit.  

 
g. Final details regarding all window glazing and potentially reflective building surfaces shall 

be provided for the review and approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of a 
construction permit.  Said glazing and surfacing shall be treated or designed in a manner 
to reduce glare impacts to adjacent uses, motorists, pedestrians and wildlife (e.g. to 
reduce bird window strikes).  

 
h. The project shall include Universal Design features for residential units. These features 

include physical improvements that make a dwelling unit more accessible to older or 
physically challenged tenants.  The goal of this condition shall be to provide for as many 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

4 

 

universal design features as possible as contained and described within the City’s 
Universal Design checklist. The Project Proponent shall submit details for its Universal 
Design Program for the review and approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of a 
construction permit.     
 

i. Final landscape, hardscape, and outdoor lighting plans and details shall be provided for 
the review and approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of a construction permit.  
Said landscaping plan shall include water conserving irrigation meeting applicable City of 
Brea standards.   Approved landscaping and irrigation shall be installed prior to any 
building occupancy.  Said plan details shall include:   
 

1. Screening quality landscape treatments shall be incorporated along the 
western property line, adjacent to the parking garage.  The screening shall 
additionally serve the paseo area adjacent to the east elevation of the parking 
garage.   

 
2. Details for decorative paving, hardscape, outdoor furniture, lighting and 

associated features. Outdoor amenities for the residential and commercial 
areas shall incorporate seating amenities, tables, planters and similar details 
as generally depicted within the concept plans and specifications provided to 
the Planning Commission.   

 
3. Open space areas along Birch Street shall be provided with plazas, courtyards, 

street furniture, outdoor dining, lounge areas and similar details to activate the 
Birch Street frontage which shall be available for general use by patrons of the 
businesses and pedestrians.   Gates, fencing or similar materials restricting 
public access to the commercial frontage shall be prohibited to insure that 
areas are open and available for general use.   

 
4. Project bicycle racks with unique design attributes, similar to depictions within 

the concept plans and specifications provided to the Planning Commission.   
 

5. The number of trees, shrubs, groundcover and vines provided shall not be less 
than the amount depicted on the conceptual landscape plans contained within 
the Plans and Specifications.   

 
6. Details shall include the quantity, size, species type and placement of final 

trees for all trail locations and linear park and common open space areas for 
each planning area of the project. 

 
7. A landscape installation phasing plan which provides for select, initial 

placement and planting of trees and shrubs prior to building construction with 
a goal to provide visual softening of the site from adjacent neighborhoods and 
public view areas.   

 
8. Final outdoor lighting details incorporating designs and fixtures consistent with 

the concept plans and specifications provided to the Planning Commission.  
 

9. Wall & Fencing details with construction materials which are decorative and 
enduring such as Gabion, split-face, decorative masonry or of similar caliber.  



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

5 

 

All low walls adjacent to the city trail shall be Gabion walls. 
 

j. The applicant shall provide final detailed plans and associated agreements to construct 
and install a decorative pedestrian path/bridge within Tracks at Brea to connect the project 
to the trail, subject to the review and approval of the City Planner and City Engineer prior 
to the issuance of a construction permit. 

 
k. The applicant shall provide for the plans and details and Installation of mature, specimen 

quality and sized (e.g. 60” box) trees within the Tracks at Brea site adjacent to the project 
site and modification of existing irrigation system in Tracks at Brea to irrigate the proposed 
trees, subject t the review and approval of the City prior to the issuance of any occupancy.   

 
l. Applicant shall enter into a Maintenance and Reimbursement Agreement (“MRA”) with the 

City for the improvements within the Tracks at Brea. The MRA shall be recorded prior to 
any occupancy. The MRA shall state that the Project Proponent(s) or Project Proponent’s 
Association (POA) shall be responsible to fund, maintain, repair and reconstruct the 
proposed pedestrian path/bridge connections to the trails and shall reimburse City for the 
on-going maintenance cost of the proposed trees.  

 
m. All landscaped areas shall be kept free from weeds and debris, maintained in a healthy 

growing condition and shall receive regular pruning, fertilizing, mowing and trimming.  
Unhealthy, dead or damaged plant materials shall be removed and replaced within thirty 
(30) days following written notice from the City Planner.  

 

 
TRAFFIC AND PARKING RELATED 
 

n. The applicant shall provide plans for the review of voluntary traffic Improvements 
consistent with representations provided to the Planning Commission, as memorialized at 
the public hearing, and subject to the further definition and review and approval of the City 
Planner and City Engineer prior to the issuance of any construction permit for the project. 
Implementation of said plans shall occur prior to any occupancy. Said improvements shall 
include:  

 
1. Adaptive Traffic Signal Control System for the signalized intersections on State 

College Blvd between Imperial Highway and Lambert Road.   
 

2. Connected Vehicle Technology infrastructure for roadways and signals in the 
project vicinity. 

 
3. Wayfinding and Congestion Avoidance program for the on-site circulation 

system.  
 

4. Holiday Traffic Parking & Shuttle Plan to serve the Brea Mall and Marketplace 
shopping center during peak November and December holiday season.  

 
5. A dedicated right turn lane improvement for southbound State College Blvd to 

west bound Birch Street.  
 

6. Relocation and related improvements for transit stops on north and south 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

6 

 

bound State College Blvd along the project frontage.  Said improvements shall 
provide for bus loading and unloading without impeding vehicles in the travel 
lane, subject to coordination with OCTA. 

 
7. Increased width of project driveways beyond minimum City standard to 

facilitate optimal and more efficient ingress and egress of the site.  
 

8. Modification of existing traffic signal synchronization phasing for signalized 
intersections near the project site.  

 
o. The applicant shall provide a plan for the programming of the flexible parking/event space 

at the office buildings on Site 1.  Said plan shall include the proposed types of events, 
number of events, schedule of events, maintenance of event site, parking management 
and similar operational details for this flexible parking/event space feature. All gathering 
space details shall be included in the Brea Place conditions, covenants and restrictions.  
Final operational details, design, colors, materials and finishes shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of construction permits.   

 
p. Final plans for the details for the expansion of the existing parking garage structure shall 

be provided for the review and approval of the City Building and Safety Manager prior to 
the issuance of a construction permit.  Said plans shall provide for structural retrofitting to 
meet current structural design standards per 2016 CA Building Code or an alternative 
method of means that is deemed structurally acceptable by the Building and Safety 
Manager.  Final parking stall inventory shall be consistent with the findings and 
recommendations of the parking analysis provided for the project, including any applicable 
review recommendations from Gibson Transportation, as contained as exhibits to the staff 
report.   
 

q. Final parking plans and details for Sites 1 and 2 shall be consistent with the findings and 
recommendations of the parking analysis provided for the project, including any applicable 
review recommendations from Gibson Transportation, as contained as exhibits to the staff 
report.  Any reduction of on-site parking, change of tenant spaces/uses, restriping or 
circulation modifications shall be reviewed and approved by the City Planner prior to any 
modifications. 

 
r. The applicant shall provide a Parking Management Plan (PMP) for the review and 

approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of any occupancy for the new buildings.  
Said PMP shall: 

 
1. Address the use of all on-site parking details and operations and shall incorporate 

management strategies to maximize the use of available parking (i.e. parking time 
limitations and transition from a day time use of the office building to a night time 
need for other uses).   

 
2. Identify a process and central contact to address and resolve any on-site parking 

discrepancies or issues in a timely fashion.   
 
3. Provide strategies to assure that on-site uses maintain on-site parking and 

preclude the potential for off-site parking impacts to the adjacent residential 
neighborhoods.  



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

7 

 

 
4. Include a process by which the City of Brea is afforded the ability to require the 

ownership to provide additional parking analysis and amendments to the PMP to 
provide for new or modified parking management or solutions should the City of 
Brea identify any future parking shortfall or problems at the site. 

 
s. The use of the integrated parking garages for Buildings A and B shall be limited to the 

parking of operable, resident owned, motor vehicles (i.e. cars, trucks, SUV’s, 
motorcycles).  The parking or storage of recreational vehicles is prohibited. 
 

t. The final configuration for vehicle parking design, layout and any other applicable garage 
or surface parking area, shall be subject to the review and approval of the City Planner 
prior to issuance of construction permits. 

 
u. A recorded reciprocal access and parking agreement between and among Site 1 and Site 

2, and parcels within the sites, shall be executed to the satisfaction of the City Attorney, 
City Planner and City Engineer and implemented by the applicant prior to final occupancy. 
This agreement shall be included in the CC&Rs and recorded against all parcels subject 
to the agreement. 
 

CCRS 
 

v. Covenants, Codes and Restrictions (CC&R's) shall be provided for the review and 
approval of the City prior to the issuance of any construction permits.  The CC&R's shall 
address the common area, including but not limited to the maintenance and responsibility 
on-site art piece(s), site drainage, fire service lines, uses, and associated piping and 
appurtenances, lighting, onsite landscaping, off-site: bio-swale, bridges, improvements 
and tree grove within the public right-of-way maintained by the Project Proponent.  

 
1. The CC&R's shall include a list of acceptable and/or prohibited uses for the 

commercial space. Said uses shall be consistent with the project descriptions and 
vision provided to the Planning Commission through the project entitlement 
process and reflected within the staff reports, presentations, and specifications. 

 
2. The CC&R's shall require: that parking garages are utilized for the parking of 

vehicles at all times; and include provisions for the creation of an on-site 
association/property management; establishment and use of patios/balconies, 
including but not limited to, storage and permitted outdoor furniture.  

 
3. CC&R's shall be recorded within 30 days of the approved final tract map for 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 2016-178. A copy of the recorded CC&R's shall be 
provided to the Community Development Department within thirty (30) days of 
recordation.  

 
4. All residential and commercial tenants shall be informed of the CC&Rs. A copy of 

the recorded CC&Rs shall be provided to each residential and commercial tenant 
upon signature agreement of lease contract. 

TRASH 
 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

8 

 

w. A final trash removal service plan shall be submitted for the review and approval of the 

City Planner prior to first occupancy.  Said plan shall provide for and limit trash removal 

vehicles and servicing of facilities in a manner to reduce associated noise and nuisance 

impacts to on-site and off-site residents.   

 
x. All outdoor trash facilities shall be shielded from view within a decorative enclosure with 

walls a minimum six (6) feet in height and provided with metal gates.  The design of 
enclosures shall be in a manner consistent with the architecture used for the buildings and 
shall require a separate review and approval by the City Planner prior to the issuance of 
a construction permit.     
 

MISC 
 

y. The applicant shall provide a final construction phasing plan and a timeline of each phase 
planned in project implementation for the review and approval of the City Planner prior to 
the issuance of each construction permit.    
 

z. The applicant shall provide a comprehensive sign program subject to the review and 
approval of the City Planner prior to the issuance of any sign permits.  Said program shall 
include pertinent details regarding residential entry signage, commercial space and project 
wayfinding. Details shall include the maximum sign area, letter sizes, location, and number 
of signs, lighting techniques and associated details. Deviations from the signage criteria 
of the zoning ordinance may be considered within the Sign Program, subject to the review 
and approval of the City Planner.  Signage shall be designed to minimize aesthetic and 
light and glare impacts to the residential units within and surrounding the project. 
 

aa. The applicant shall provide final plans for surface treatments for any underground 
electrical vaults and screening treatments for above ground vaults shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City Planner and Edison prior to the issuance of a construction 
permit.   

 
bb. Hold Harmless: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the applicant shall indemnify, defend 

and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, contractors serving as City officers, agents, 
and employees (“Indemnitees”) free and harmless from: (i) any and all claims, liabilities 
and losses whatsoever occurring or resulting to any and all persons, firms, entities, or 
corporations furnishing or supplying work, services, materials, or supplies in connection 
with, or related to, the performance of work or the exercise of rights authorized by approval 
of Precise Development No. 16-04 and Conditional Use Permit Nos. 16-10 and 16-11; and 
(ii) any and all claims, lawsuits, liabilities, and/or actions arising out of, or related to the 
approval of the Precise Development and Conditional Use Permits or the granting or 
exercise of the rights authorized by said approval; and (iii) from any and all claims, 
liabilities and losses occurring or resulting to any person, firm, entity, corporation for 
property damage, personal injury, or death, arising out of or related to the approval of, or 
exercise of rights granted by, this Precise Development and Conditional Use 
Permit.  Project Proponent's obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold the Indemnitees 
free and harmless as required hereinabove shall include, but is not limited to, paying all 
fees and costs incurred by legal counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice in representing the 
Indemnitees in connection with any such claims, losses, lawsuits, or actions, and any 
award of damages, judgments, verdicts, court costs or attorneys' fees in any such lawsuit 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

9 

 

or action. 
 
MAP 
 

a. Development shall occur in substantial conformance with the plans and specifications 
submitted to the Planning Commission and dated February 28, 2017; site plan, conceptual 
grading plans, tentative maps, utility plans conceptual landscape plans and associated 
details are all on file in the Planning Division, the conditions contained herein, and all 
applicable City regulations.  

 
b. The applicant shall prepare a digital copy (suitable for archival storage) of the plans and 

specifications noted in Condition “a.”  This product shall be received by the Brea Planning 
Division and the Engineering Division prior to the issuance of any building permits for the 
development. 

 
 
PRIOR TO FINAL MAP 

 
c. Applicant shall submit Final Map (Parcel Map 2016-178) for the property area located on 

the west side of State College Boulevard, prepared by a Licensed Surveyor or Registered 
Civil Engineer authorized to practice land surveying in the State of California for review 
and approval.   

 
d.  The following easements shall be vacated by City of Brea: 

 
1. Existing 10-ft wide City of Brea Water Easement, except for the existing 12” water 

line located along the southwest corner of the property proposed to remain. 
 

2. Existing 30-ft wide City of Brea Storm Drain Easement along the northerly property 
line.  

 
e. The following easement shall be dedicated to the City of Brea: 

 
1. Public water easement for the proposed domestic water services and fire 

services location within the property along the first reach of northerly and 
southerly driveways on State College Boulevard. The exact width and 
limit of the easement shall be determined at the time of improvement plan 
review and approval process. 

 
2. Additional public right-of-way dedication for the proposed right-turn only 

lane on the west side of State College Boulevard at Birch Street. The 
exact width and limits of dedication, which includes the corner cut-off, 
shall be determined at the time of improvement plan review and approval 
process.   

 
f. Applicant shall prepare water easement abandonment and dedication documents for the 

relocation of the existing 8” public water line within the proposed hotel site (Site 2) located 
on the east side of State College Boulevard.  These documents shall be prepared by a 
Licensed Surveyor or Registered Civil Engineer authorized to practice land surveying in 
the State of California for review and approval. 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

10 

 

 
g. Applicant shall conduct a detailed operational analysis of the proposed traffic signals at 

the proposed driveway (Project Driveway C) on Birch Street prior to design of any 
improvements. The purpose of the operational analysis will be to demonstrate that fully 
actuated traffic signal can be satisfactorily incorporated into the City’s regional traffic 
corridor signal synchronization systems on Birch Street without creating vehicle queues 
that would potentially block or disrupt the efficient operation of the other traffic signals on 
Birch Street corridor. It is anticipated that incorporation of the new traffic signals will 
incorporate the installation of adaptive traffic control technology, as such, the operational 
analysis shall be based on an adaptive traffic control system compatible with existing City 
equipment and incorporating up to a total of ten signalized intersections on State College 
Boulevard and Birch Street, as recommended by the Project Proponent and approved by 
the City Engineer. 

 
h. Applicant shall submit public and private improvement plans, final sewer study and final 

drainage study for review and approval by City Engineer. Said plans and studies shall be 
prepared by a Registered Civil Engineer.  The public improvements shall include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 

 
1. Widening of the west side of State College Boulevard to accommodate the right-

turn only lane. Project Proponent shall be responsible to remove, relocate, modify 
and reconstruct any existing improvements, including the traffic signal, impacted 
by the proposed improvement. 

 
2. Relocation of existing on-site 60” public storm drains along the northerly property 

line into the City owned property (APN 319-022-28), also identified as Tracks at 
Brea. Project Proponent is responsible to replace all damaged or disturbed portion 
of the existing improvements (including the bio-swale) in the Tracks at Brea in-
kind. 

 
3. Removal of existing on-site 8” public water line, located in the apartment site west 

side of State College Boulevard, interfering with the proposed improvements. 
Project Proponent could reuse and/or reconstruct the remaining portion of the 
existing water line for private fire water line purposes per Fire Department review 
and approval. 

 
4. Relocation of existing on-site 8” public water line, located in hotel site east of State 

College Boulevard, interfering with the proposed improvements. Project Proponent 
shall submit public water easement abandonment and dedication documents for 
review and approval by City Engineer. These documents shall be prepared by a 
Licensed Surveyor or Registered Civil Engineer authorized to practice land 
surveying in the State of California. 

 
5. Relocation of the existing water quality monitoring station on the existing 8” water 

line located in the southwest corner of the project. The new location shall be 
determined by City Engineer at the time of improvement plan review and approval 
process. 

 
6. Upsizing the existing connector pipe between the catch basins on State College 

Boulevard and Birch Street (at the south east corner of the development area 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

11 

 

located on the west side of State College Boulevard), if the final drainage study 
indicates that the existing connector pipe is deficient to accept the proposed on-
site runoff  

 
7. Proposed improvements at Project Driveway A (existing northerly signalized 

driveway) on State College Boulevard are as follow:  
 

i. Restriping to provide an exclusive left turn lane and a right and through 
combination lane in the eastbound direction and modification of the existing 
signal heads as necessary to accommodate the restriping. 

  
8.  Proposed improvements at Project Driveway B (existing southerly non-signalized 

driveway) on State College Boulevard are as follow: 

 

i. Construction of a raised center median on State College Boulevard to allow 

right turns in and out of the driveway, as shown in the Traffic Impact 

Analysis (TIA). The exact length and width of the raised median to be 

determined by City Engineer at the time of improvement plan review and 

approval process. 

 

9. Proposed improvements at Project Driveway C (existing non-signalized driveway) 

on Birch Street are as follow: 

 

i. If the traffic operational analysis is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the 

City Engineer that the proposed traffic signal at Project Driveway C can be 

incorporated into the City’s signal synchronization system, then design of the 

traffic signal can proceed. Additionally, the Project Proponent shall include 

an adaptive traffic control system in the Birch Street corridor. 

 

ii. The Project Proponent shall monitor and report on the traffic signal 

synchronization operation of the Birch Street corridor on a regular basis 

during the course of the construction and occupancy of the project up to 

100% occupancy and for a period of two (2) years after 100% occupancy; 

and, to make improvements to the traffic signals on the Birch Street corridor, 

as required by the City Engineer, to ensure that the traffic signal 

synchronization continues to operate at an optimal level of service. For the 

purposes of the monitoring, it shall be the Project Proponent’s obligation to 

retain a traffic engineering consultant qualified to conduct the monitoring and 

approved by the City Engineer. 

 

iii. However, if the traffic operational analysis does not demonstrate to the 

satisfaction of the City Engineer, that the proposed traffic signal at Project 

Driveway C can be incorporated into the City’s signal synchronization 

system, then further analysis shall be conducted at the Project Proponent’s 

expense by a qualified Traffic Engineer approved the City Engineer to 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

12 

 

determine an alternative traffic mitigation solution acceptable to the City 

Engineer shall be provided. 

 
i. Applicant shall complete the required improvements or enter into a Subdivision 

Improvement Agreement with the City. All public improvements required to construct 
within these Conditions of Approval, including proposed trees and irrigation modification 
improvements in Tracks at Brea, shall be guaranteed to be installed by providing bonds 
or sureties (cash deposit) for both Faithful Performance and Labor and Materials as 
required by the Subdivision Map Act in a form approved by the City Attorney. The bonds 
shall also include the costs associated with monthly traffic monitoring and reporting based 
during the course of the construction and occupancy of the project up to 100% occupancy 
and for a period of two (2) years after 100% occupancy. 

 
j. Applicant shall submit a Baseline Traffic Monitoring Report. Applicant shall consult with 

City Traffic Engineer for the monitoring and the report format. The monitoring and report 

shall be conducted by a traffic engineering consultant qualified to perform the monitoring 

and approved by the City Traffic Engineer. 

 
k. Applicant shall provide CC&Rs for the review and approval of the Public Works 

Department, Fire Department, Community Development Department and City Attorney.  
The CC&Rs shall address the common areas, including but not limited to the maintenance 
and responsibility: site drainage; shared utility lines and associated piping and 
appurtenances; lighting; on-site landscaping & irrigation maintained by the Project 
Proponent and/or Project Proponent’s Association (POA). This requirement shall be 
included in the CC&Rs as described for the Precise Development No. 16-04 and 
Conditional Use Permit Nos. 16-10 and 16-11. 

 
l. Said CC&R shall include a statement that “the recorded copy of the Maintenance and 

Reimbursement Agreement entered into by the Project Proponent and City is made a part 
of these CC&R’s thereof.” 

 
Prior to issuance of any grading permit: 

 
m. Applicant shall submit final Water Quality Management Plan for review and approval. 

 
n. Applicant shall submit grading and demolition plans as prepared by Registered Civil 

Engineer for review and approval by the City Engineer and Building Official. 
 

Upon the issuance of first construction (demo, grading or building) permit: 
 

o. Applicant shall start the regular Traffic Monitoring Report process. Applicant shall consult 

with City Traffic Engineer for the monitoring and the report format. The monitoring and 

report shall be conducted by a traffic engineering consultant qualified to perform the 

monitoring and approved by the City Traffic Engineer and submit the report on a regular 

basis. 

Prior to issuance of residential (non-parking structure) building permit for building 
fronting Birch Street or Hotel Site: 

 



  ATTACHMENT 7 
 

 

13 

 

p. Applicant shall complete the construction of the following required improvements to the 
satisfaction of City Engineer: 

 
i. Raised center median on State College Boulevard at Project Driveway B. 

 
ii. Traffic signal and adaptive traffic system or alternately approved traffic mitigation 

on Project Driveways C. 
 

Prior to issuance of building permit of the proposed structures fronting the Tracks at 
Brea: 

 
q. Applicant shall complete the construction of the following required improvements to the 

satisfaction of City Engineer: 
 

i. Restriping and signal modification at Project Driveway A. 
 

ii. Relocation of 60” storm drain line. 
 

iii. Installation of tree and irrigation in the Tracks at Brea. 
 

Prior to release of all Faithful Performance Bond: 
 

r. Applicant shall provide regular Traffic Monitoring Report through the course of 
construction and up to a minimum of 24 months (2 years) from the time of 100% 
occupancy of the project.  If the installed traffic signal on Project Driveway C is determined 
to not function to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, then the traffic signal shall be 
removed and an alternative traffic mitigation solution acceptable to the City Engineer shall 
be provided.   

 
s. All improvements shall be completed and accepted by the City and warranty bond shall 

be provided in accordance with the Subdivision Improvement Agreement.  
 

t. Hold Harmless: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Applicant shall indemnify, 
defend and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, contractors serving as City officers, 
agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) free and harmless from: (i) any and all claims, 
liabilities and losses whatsoever occurring or resulting to any and all persons, firms, 
entities, or corporations furnishing or supplying work, services, materials, or supplies in 
connection with, or related to, the performance of work or the exercise of rights authorized 
by approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 2016-178; and (ii) any and all claims, lawsuits, 
liabilities, and/or actions arising out of, or related to the approval of this Tentative Parcel 
Map and/or the granting or exercise of the rights authorized by said approval; and (iii) from 
any and all claims, liabilities and losses occurring or resulting to any person, firm, entity, 
corporation for property damage, personal injury, or death, arising out of or related to the 
approval of, or exercise of rights granted by, this Tentative Parcel Map.  Project 
Proponent's obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold the Indemnitees free and harmless 
as required hereinabove shall include, but is not limited to, paying all fees and costs 
incurred by legal counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice in representing the Indemnitees in 
connection with any such claims, losses, lawsuits, or actions, and any award of damages, 
judgments, verdicts, court costs or attorneys' fees in any such lawsuit or action. 

 



Agenda Item   10. 
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

FROM: Jennifer Lilley, 

DATE: 04/25/2017

SUBJECT: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 17-03 – TO ALLOW A TACTICAL DEFENSE
TRAINING BUSINESS IN AN EXISTING OFFICE AND WAREHOUSE BUILDING
LOCATED AT 615 NORTH BERRY STREET, SUITE I IN THE M-1, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL
ZONE

REQUEST
The application is a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a tactical defense training business
in an existing office and warehouse building in the M-1, Light Industrial zone. 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 17-03, subject
to the conditions in the draft Resolution.
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Mr. Bryan McKenrick, owner of American Tactical
Defense, is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to
open a tactical defense training business.  The
business will provide personal and home defense
training geared toward parents, homeowners, renters
and law enforcement agencies for training purposes.   
The applicant is a Federally Certified Firearms
Instructor and currently supervises, instructs and trains
nearly 1,000 Federal Officers annually in his capacity
as a Federal Law Enforcement Officer.  A full
description of the business background and operations
is included in Attachment 5.  Commercial trade
schools, including those offering non-degree subjects
and specialized programs in personal growth and
development, are permitted in the M-1 zone subject to
Planning Commission review and approval of a
Conditional Use Permit.

American Tactical Defense proposes to locate in Suite
I of the business park at 615 North Berry Street.  The Suite currently includes two levels totaling 1,200
square feet, see Attachment 4.  This space will be modified to create a simulation of a two-story
single-family home.  The ground level will also include a check-in area and a conference room for
training and briefing activities.   The applicant proposes to operate the business from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00
p.m. Monday to Friday and from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturday and Sunday.  A  maximum of two
employees will be on-site at any given time and up to eight customers per training on weekdays and

http://138.242.67.96:8080/shareddocs/image/Figure1.jpg


ten customers per training on weekends are expected. 
 
Each customer will participate in a three-hour training session consisting of a safety briefing, training
session and a scenario-based simulation using non-lethal training ammunition. To ensure safety, the
business will include a “semi-safe zone” in the lobby and a “safe zone” inside the scenario training
area.  In the semi-safe zone, customers will be searched for firearms, ammunition and other items that
could pose a safety threat prior to entering the safe zone.  All customers and employees will be
required to wear full-face, neck and body protective gear.  The applicant will also require customers to
complete a questionnaire to verify they are legally authorized to possess a firearm prior to scheduling
a training session.  These operations are detailed in the Project Business Plan in Attachment 5.  A
condition of approval has been added requiring the business to operate in substantial conformance
with this proposal.
 
From a parking and operational standpoint, the most similar type of businesses are small dance and
martial arts schools, tutoring centers, fitness uses and uses offering specialized training  programs
where groups of individuals participate together in an activity.  Many of these businesses operate
successfully in business parks throughout the city in a manner that does not impact and complements
surrounding uses. 
 
The American Tactical Defense site is currently developed with a multi-tenant office and warehouse
complex totaling 17,528 square feet at 615 North Berry Street in addition to an 8,762 square foot
single-tenant warehouse building directly to the west at 720 Challenger Street.  These two buildings
include a combination of small-scale office and industrial uses which operate during the typical 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. business hours.  The site includes a total of 67 parking spaces shared by tenants of
both buildings.  The Zoning Code requires 50 parking spaces for the office/warehouse uses. 
American Tactical Defense will require a maximum of 10 parking spaces on weekdays and 12 parking
spaces on weekends.  The parking supply is adequate to support the proposed use.  These
operations are also detailed in the Project Business Plan.  The applicant will be required to operate the
business in substantial conformance with this proposal to ensure an adequate parking supply on
site.
 
Should operations intensify in the future (i.e. increased number of employees, increased number of
clients served at a time), staff has added a condition to require review of the intensification in use for
compatibility and parking.  Given the limited number of trainers and customers, the indoor nature of
the business, thorough safety precautions, compliance with Federal regulations and adequate parking
on site, the use is anticipated to operate in a consistent manner with the business park, and is not
expected to have a negative impact on the business park or adjacent tenants.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT
The proposed project is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 of Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 19 of the California Code of
Regulations.

TECHNICAL BACKGROUND
Case Nos: Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 17-03
Property Location: 615 North Berry Street, Suite I
Applicant: American Tactical Defense, Bryan McKenrick
Property Owner: Albany Synergistics, 1102 East Chestnut Avenue, Orange,

CA 92867
General Plan Designation: Light Industrial
Zoning Designation: M-1 Light Industrial

http://138.242.67.96:8080/shareddocs/image/Figure1.jpg


Lot Size: 1.42 acres
Adjacent Zoning/Land Uses
North: M-1 Light Industrial / office and warehouse developments
South: M-1 Light Industrial / Brea Olinda Unified School District

bus lot
East: M-1 Light Industrial / office and warehouse developments
West: M-1 Light Industrial / office and warehouse developments
Site and Neighborhood
Characteristics:

The site consists of an office and warehouse complex. The
surrounding uses consist of similar office and warehouse
uses on the North, East and West sides, in addition to a
bus lot to the South.

Public Hearing Notices: Legal notices was published in the Brea Progress on April
6, 2017 and 26 notices were sent to property owners within
a 500-foot radius of the subject property.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Jennifer A. Lilley, AICP, City Planner

Prepared by: Fang-zhou Zhou, AICP, Assistant Planner

Attachments
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Public Hearing Notice 
3. Draft Resolution 
4. Plans & Desricption 
5. Project Business Plan 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

  

N 

 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 
AND VICINITY MAP 

 
DATE:  APRIL 25, 2017  

 
CASE NO: 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 17-03  
 





        ATTACHMENT  3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. PC 2017- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
BREA APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 17-03 – TO ALLOW 
A TACTICAL DEFENSE TRAINING BUSINESS LOCATED AT 615 NORTH 
BERRY STREET, SUITE I, IN THE M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONE 
SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS AS SET FORTH HEREIN 

 

A.    RECITALS:  

(i) The Planning Commission of the City of Brea has heretofore held a duly 

noticed public hearing, as required by law, on Conditional Use Permit No. 17-03 to allow 

a tactical defense training business. 

(ii) The property owner is Albany Synergistics, 1102 East Chestnut Avenue, 

Orange, CA 92867. 

(iii) The project proponent is Bryan McKenrick, American Tactical Defense, 

585 Bonita Canyon Way, Brea, CA 92821.  

(iv) The subject property is located at 615 North Berry Street, Suite I, and 

further legally described as a portion of Map Book 296, Page 22, Block 221, Parcel 18, 

as shown in the latest records of the County of Orange Assessor’s Office.  

(v) The property is zoned M-1 Light Industrial and designated Light Industrial 

in the General Plan Land Use Element.  

(vi) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 
B.  RESOLUTION: 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the Planning Commission of the City of Brea, as follows: 

1. In all respects as set forth in Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 - 
Page 2 
Athletes In Motion 
CUP No. 17-03 
 

2. The Planning Commission hereby finds the project identified above in this 

Resolution is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 

Act of 1970, as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder pursuant to 

Section 15301 of Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 19 of the California Code of Regulations. 

3. The Commission further finds in consideration of Conditional Use Permit 

No. 17-03 as follows:   

a.      Finding: The use applied for at the location set forth in the 

application is one for which a Conditional Use Permit is authorized by this title.  

Fact:  The subject site is zoned M-1 Light Industrial.  

Commercial trade schools, including those offering non-degree subjects and   

specialized programs in personal growth and development, are permitted in the 

M-1 zone subject to Planning Commission review and approval of a Conditional 

Use Permit. 

b. Finding:   The proposed project, with conditions as imposed, is 

necessary or desirable for the development of the community, in harmony with 

the various elements or objectives of the General Plan and not detrimental to 

existing uses or uses permitted in the zone.  

Fact:     The proposed use is located within an existing 

building.  General Plan Goal CD-1 and Policy CD-1.11 encourage providing a 

balance of land uses to meet the needs of all residents and provide for a mixture 

of businesses and service uses within the community.  This use will offer a niche 

business by offering parents, homeowners, renters, and law enforcement 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 - 
Page 3 
Athletes In Motion 
CUP No. 17-03 
 

agencies advanced tactical defense training and simulations, thereby supporting 

General Plan Goal CD-1 and Policy CD-1.11. 

 c. Finding:   The site is adequate in size and shape to 

accommodate the proposed development and to accommodate the proposed 

use.   

Fact:     The proposed tactical defense training business will 

be located within an existing industrial business park.  The site is mainly 

comprised of office and warehouse uses and the subject site was approved in 

accordance with the City’s zoning requirements to accommodate such uses.  

The site has an adequate parking supply and given the proposed business’ 

limited operations and occupancy, no negative impacts are anticipated.    

           d.     Finding:    The proposed site relates to streets and highways 

which are properly designed and improved to carry the type and quantity of traffic 

generated. 

           Fact:           Vehicular access will be provided from Berry Street 

and Challenger Street.  Berry Street is designated as a Secondary Arterial by the 

General Plan and is properly designed and improved to carry traffic generated by 

the proposed use.  The proposed use is not expected to have a significant impact 

on traffic generation. 

           e.    Finding:    That with the conditions stated in the permit, the uses 

will not adversely affect the public, health, safety, or general welfare. 

                  Fact:            The project has been conditioned to require 

substantial conformance with the applicant’s business plan and to ensure the 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 - 
Page 4 
Athletes In Motion 
CUP No. 17-03 
 

use of adequate safety precautions.  The business will also be required to 

comply with all applicable Federal regulations pertaining to firearms training.  The 

business will also be required to comply with applicable Building and Fire Code 

requirements.  These measures will ensure the use will not adversely affect the 

public health, safety, and welfare. 

4. Conditional Use Permit No. 17-03 is hereby approved, subject to 

conditions as set forth herein: 

a. Business operations must occur in substantial conformance with the site 
plan, floor plan, and project description submitted to the Planning 
Commission and dated April 25, 2017, on-file in the Planning Division, the 
conditions contained herein, and all applicable Federal, State and City 
regulations.  Any modification to the approved use must require the review 
and approval of the City Planner prior to alteration. 

 
b. Should the business intensify (extended hours, more students, more 

instructors, expanded space, etc.) the tenant shall submit revised 
business operations for the review and consideration of the City Planner 
related to parking and compatibility and conformance with this CUP.   

 
c. Proposed business activities and operations must be conducted entirely 

indoors. 
 

d. Prior to occupancy, the applicant must demonstrate compliance with Fire 
Department and Building & Safety Division codes and standards. 
 

e. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the applicant must indemnify, 
defend and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, contractors serving 
as City officers, agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) free and harmless 
from: (i) any and all claims, liabilities and losses whatsoever occurring or 
resulting to any and all persons, firms, entities, or corporations furnishing 
or supplying work, services, materials, or supplies in connection with, or 
related to, the performance of work or the exercise of rights authorized by 
approval of this Conditional Use Permit No. 17-03; and (ii) any and all 
claims, lawsuits, liabilities, and/or actions arising out of, or related to the 
approval of this Conditional Use Permit and/or the granting or exercise of 
the rights authorized by said approval; and (iii) from any and all claims, 
liabilities and losses occurring or resulting to any person, firm, entity, 
corporation for property damage, personal injury, or death, arising out of 
or related to the approval of, or exercise of rights granted by, this 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 - 
Page 5 
Athletes In Motion 
CUP No. 17-03 
 

Conditional Use Permit.  Applicant's obligation to indemnify, defend, and 
hold the Indemnitees free and harmless as required hereinabove must 
include, but is not limited to, paying all fees and costs incurred by legal 
counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice in representing the Indemnitees in 
connection with any such claims, losses, lawsuits, or actions, and any 
award of damages, judgments, verdicts, court costs or attorneys' fees in 
any such lawsuit or action. 

 
5. The Secretary of this Commission must certify to the adoption of this 

Resolution. 
 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 25th day of April, 2017. 
 

 
              

Chairman, Planning Commission 
 

 
I, Jennifer A. Lilley, Secretary to the Planning Commission of the City of Brea, do 

hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the 

Planning Commission of the City of Brea held on the 25th day of April, 2017, and was 

finally passed at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Brea, held 

on the 25th day of April, 2017, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:    

NOES: COMMISSIONERS:   

ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:   

ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS:  
        

ATTEST:            
                 Secretary, Planning Commission 







Business Project 

 

American Tactical Defense, LLC 

 

615 N. Berry St. Suite I 

Brea, Ca 92821 

 

 

 

Karla Rivera/Bryan McKenrick, Owner 

 

October 18, 2016



1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Product 

 

To provide all law abiding American Citizens with training involving tactics, methods and means 

of protecting themselves from today's criminals and random acts of violence within their 

residences. Our training service is designed for realistic scenario based training utilizing real 

firearms with Non-Lethal Training Ammunition. We will provide role players with a brick and 

mortar mocked home located in an Office space.  

 

 

Customers 

 

This training's demographic consists of all residents in Southern California. We will advertise to 

parents, homeowners and renters that own or are interested in owning a firearm for protection. 

All customers will be required to be the ages of 21 or over. 



2.. COMPANY DESCRIPTION 

 

Mission Statement 

 

"Empowering the Innocent” No more victims! 

 

American Tactical was created to provide our communities with methods and options for 

protecting themselves from violent criminals. We refuse to stand by and witness our law-abiding 

citizens continue to be victims of crime within their own homes. 

 

When Police are minutes away and seconds count, it is entirely up to you whether or not you 

choose to be a helpless victim or protect your loved ones and yourself. 

 

We pledge to dedicate all our time and efforts into valuing innocent people and training them 

with a skill set of defending themselves and their loved ones. 

Principal Members 

 

Owner - Karla Rivera/Bryan McKenrick 

 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) - Karla Rivera 

 

Responsible for growth, development, strategic planning and overall guidance of the business. 

 

Chief Operations Officer (COO) - Bryan McKenrick 

 

Responsible for all creation of training, implementation of training programs, inventory and 

oversight of daily operations. 

Legal Structure 

 

American Tactical will be a Limited Liability Corporation 

 



 

 



3. MARKET RESEARCH 

 

Industry 

 

In my capacity as a Federally Certified Firearms Instructor, I have clear understanding of the 

nature of this training service in regards to subject matter, safety and operations thereof. My 

current career as a Federal Law Enforcement Officer for U.S. Customs and Border Protection has 

provided me extensive training, experience and certifications in the following: 

 

· Firearms Instructor 

 

· Active Shooter Response Instructor 

 

· California Peace Officer Standards in Training (POST) Academy Instructor 

 

· Use of Force 

 

I currently Supervise, instruct and train about 1,000 Federal Officers four times per year. I 

Supervise all Law Enforcement training including, Customs and Border Protection Tactical 

Team, Firearms, Active Shooter and Use of Force training. In addition, I train LAPD in Active 

Shooter training. 

I am certified in numerous Active Shooter Programs and train every day.  

Competitors 

 

This training service is one of a kind. There are not any other businesses around the Los Angeles 

or Orange County area with this type of training utilizing non-lethal training ammunition. NLTA 

training has been regarded by all Law Enforcement as the most realistic training short of using 

real firearms and live ammunition. 

The closest training found during the market research is all live fire either at a shooting range or 

outside in open areas. 

 

This training service that American Tactical is truly a ground-breaking business service. 



Competitive Advantage 

 

Compared to any other competitors, the advantages of this business are many. 

 

· Safer training 

 

· Non-lethal training ammunition 

 

· Familiar environment (home setting) 

 

· 3-hour training sessions 

 

· Located within a community 

 

· Training is flexible 

 

· Environmental advantages (non-toxic and lead free) 

 

· Marking Cartridges are easily cleaned with soap and water 

 

· No hearing protection needed 

Regulation 

 

American Tactical must meet all Federal and State regulations concerning this training. 

Specifically, under the Gun Control Act title 18 USC 922(g). American Tactical will not train 

any person who is not legally authorized to possess a firearm that includes, a convicted felon, 

fugitive from justice, a person who is addicted to any controlled substance, a person who has 

been adjudicated as a mental defective or who has been committed to any mental institution, who 

is an illegal alien, a person who has been dishonorably discharged from the Armed Forces, a 

person who has renounced his or her US citizenship, a person who is subject to a court order 



restraining the person from harassing, stalking, or threatening an intimate partner or child of the 

intimate partner or who has been convicted of a misdemeanor crime of domestic violence. 

 

American Tactical will require customers to fill out an online questionnaire before scheduling 

them for a training session.  If customers answer that they do not fall into the specific categories 

above, they will be scheduled.  Once they arrive for their scheduled training, the customer will 

again have to physically answer and sign the questionnaire.  We will also require customers to 

provide their photo ID, address, phone number and email to verify identity. 

 

American Tactical Home Defense will provide three-hour training sessions to our customers. 

Our customers-needs will be met by placing them into realistic scenario based training utilizing 

real role players that will play the part of either criminals such as intruders, home invaders, 

robbers, rapist, murderers or as non-threatening persons such as a family member, police, fire 

fighter or family friend. 

 

The following will be provided during the three-hour training session: 

· Classroom safety briefing 

· Power point presentation 

· Home defense tactics and legal responsibility 

· Reality based training involving threatening situations and non-threatening situations 

· Final close out and debriefing of the scenarios 

 

Product/Service Life Cycle 

Services are ready to be offered to clients, pending construction of mock home and city 

inspection. 

 

Prospects 

Our service will be marketed as a one of a kind training service that was developed by law 

enforcement for all law-abiding citizens 

 

 

 



American Tactical Defense, LLC 

 

Monday – Thursday (Tentatively)   Hours of Operation: 8:00 am – 5:00 pm 

 Tenant will have a class of 7-8 Law Enforcement Officers for approximately 2 hours on 

an infrequent, reoccurring basis (e.g. a 2 hour class, once every 2 weeks on a Tuesday) 

 Tenant is requesting 3-4 parking spaces and will encourage clients to carpool. If the 

parking clients exceed 3-4 spaces, they will park off-site. 

 

Friday    Hours of Operation: 8:00 am – 5:00 pm 

 Tenant will have 7-8 Customers for 8 hours on an infrequent basis (e.g. an 8 hour class 

One-Friday per month for Security Company Training 

 Tenant is requesting 3-4 parking spaces and will encourage clients to carpool. If the 

parking clients exceed 3-4 spaces, they will park off-site. 

 

Saturday    Hours of Operation: 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 

 Tenant will have 7-8 Customers for a 3 hour class every Saturday.   

 Tenant is requesting 7–10 parking spaces and will encourage clients to carpool. If the 

parking clients exceed 3-4 spaces, they will park off-site. 

 

Saturday   Hours of Operation: 1:00 pm – 4 pm 

 Tenant will have 7-8 Customers for a 3 hour class every Saturday.   

 Tenant is requesting 7–10 parking spaces and will encourage clients to carpool. If the 

parking clients exceed 3-4 spaces, they will park off-site. 

 

Sunday    Hours of Operation: 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 

 Tenant will have 7-8 Customers for a 3 hour class every Sunday.   

 Tenant is requesting 7–10 parking spaces and will encourage clients to carpool. If the 

parking clients exceed 3-4 spaces, they will park off-site. 

 

Sunday   Hours of Operation: 1:00 pm – 4 pm 

 Tenant will have 7-8 Customers for a 3 hour class every Sunday.   

 Tenant is requesting 7–10 parking spaces and will encourage clients to carpool. If the 

parking clients exceed 3-4 spaces, they will park off-site. 



 

 

 

MAXIMUM OCCUPANCY 

10 Customers per Class  

2 Instructors per Class 

 

SAFETY ISSUES 

We are training home invasion scenarios and self-defense scenarios involving Non-Lethal 

Training Ammunition. That said, we will utilize numerous layers of safety. Prior to the scenarios 

being conducted, we will inspect the training areas for any safety issues e.g. tripping hazards, 

checking all customers for any live ammunition or firearms with a metal detector and physical 

inspection. There will be a Safe Zone inside the scenario training area and a Semi-Safe Zone 

immediately outside the scenario training area all requiring safety checks. All persons involved 

in the training scenarios will wear personal protective equipment consisting of Full Face 

Masks/Helmet, neck protector and full body suit that will protect them. Before each training 

class we will conduct a safety briefing with all Customers covering all safety issues and 

objectives. Safety is paramount always. 

 



Agenda Item   11. 
City of Brea

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Chair and Planning Commission

FROM: Jennifer Lilley, 

DATE: 04/25/2017

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FINDING OF CONFORMANCE
WITH THE GENERAL PLAN

REQUEST
Review the list of proposed Public Works projects recommended for planning, initiation or construction during
the 2017/2018 year and report to the City Council as to conformity with the General Plan.    

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
BACKGROUND

 Government Code Section 65401 requires the Planning Commission review the list of proposed projects in the
Fiscal Year 2017/18 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and verify conformance with the General Plan.
Subsequent to the Planning Commission’s adoption of the Resolution for CIP general conformance, the City
Council will then adopt the proposed CIP budget which is anticipated to occur in June 2017.

DISCUSSION

 The goals of the CIP are to enhance the quality of life in the community, maintain the City’s infrastructures and
improve traffic systems within the City. There are nine (9) new projects proposed in the Fiscal Year 2017/18 CIP,
as well as fifty two (52) carryover projects in various stages of completion determined to be in conformance with
the General Plan in prior years. The new projects proposed in the Fiscal Year 2017/18 CIP are listed below:

New CIP Projects for FY 2017-18

Street Improvements
7308 Birch Street & Brea Boulevard Intersection Rehabilitation
7320 Alley Pavement Rehab w/o Sycamore between Elm & Date Streets

Water Improvements
7458 Napoli Tract Water Main Replacement
7466 South Brea Neighborhood Water Main Replacement

Facility Improvements
7940 Arovista Park (west) Restroom Repairs
7941 Fire Station 3 Metal Roof Replacement
7942 Selected HVAC Component Replacement at Civic Center
7943 Brea Fitness Center Flooring Replacement
7944 Senior Center Kitchen Enhancements

The environmental documentation and/or clearance for most projects has been completed. Environmental



The environmental documentation and/or clearance for most projects has been completed. Environmental
documentation for the remaining projects will be prepared or initiated prior to the start of construction. The
Resolution attachment lists all the projects in the CIP for the next year and a summary of the status of their
environmental clearance. This conformance is ministerial and as such is exempt from the requirements of
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15268 (a).

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Jennifer A. Lilley, AICP, City Planner

Attachments
1. Draft Resolution 
2. General Plan Conformance 
3. Exhibit A 
4. General Plan Applicable Excerpts of Goals and Policies Descriptions 



RESOLUTION NO. PC 17 -__ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BREA 
FINDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE GENERAL PLAN PURSUANT TO SECTION 
65401 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE. 

 
A.   RECITALS. 
 

(i)   The Planning Commission of the City of Brea has heretofore reviewed, as 

required by Section 65401 of the Government Code, a list of projects being planned or 

constructed in the 2017 - 2018 Fiscal Year (FY) by the Capital Improvement Program 

(CIP) for conformity with the General Plan. 

(ii)   All projects, as listed in Exhibit A, are located in the City of Brea and are 

consistent with policies of the City. 

(iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 

 
B.  RESOLUTION. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the Planning Commission of the City of Brea as follows, that: 

1.      In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

2.   The 2017 - 2018 FY CIP as contained in the Draft Seven-Year CIP has been 

reviewed with particular regard to its conformity with the General Plan. 

3.   Said 2017 - 2018 FY CIP is in conformity with the General Plan, pursuant 

to Section 65401 of the Government Code.  The proposed CIP has been found to serve 

the implementation of various goals and policies of the General Plan as specifically 

outlined within the staff report and the accompanying list of projects. 



RESOLUTION NO.  PC 17-__ 
Page 2 
Applicant:  City of Brea 
Capital Improvement Program – Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
 
 

4.   This Resolution shall constitute this Commission’s report and 

recommendation to the City Council as required by the Government Code. 

 5.   The Planning Commission also finds and determines that the projects 

identified in Exhibit A, Section III are categorically exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act of 1970, as amended, and the guidelines 

promulgated thereunder pursuant to Section 15301 and 15262 of Division 6 of Title 14 of 

the California Code of Regulations.   

 6.   The Secretary of this Commission shall certify to the adoption of this 

Resolution and forthwith transmit a certified copy to the City Council, as the report 

required to meet California Government Code 65401. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 25th day of April 2017. 

 
             
       _____________________________ 
       Chairman, Planning Commission 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO.  PC 17-__ 
Page 3 
Applicant:  City of Brea 
Capital Improvement Program – Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
 
 
 
I, Jennifer A. Lilley, Secretary to the Planning Commission of the City of Brea, do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Planning 

Commission of the City of Brea held on the 25th day of April 2017, and was finally passed 

at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Brea, held on the 25th day 

of April, 2017, by the following votes: 

 
 
AYES:   COMMISSIONERS:     

 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS:   

ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:   

ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS:   

 

 
      ATTEST:___________________________ 
               Secretary, Planning Commission 
 

 



Shaded Area = New Project 
 

GENERAL PLAN CONFORMANCE MATRIX 
2017/18 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 
PROJECT 
NUMBER 

 
DESCRIPTION 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMUNITY 
RESOURCES 

PUBLIC 
SAFETY 

 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

7219 Traffic Calming Improvements CD 2.3, 6.4, 11.5  PS 3.1 

7251 57 Freeway/Lambert Road Interchange CD 10.1, 11.1, 11.6,  
27.1, 28.1 

CR 13.1 PS 3.1 

7278 Imperial Hwy & Berry Street Intersection Improvements CD 11.1, 11.2   
7288 Randolph Avenue Rehabilitation CD 11.1   
7305 Brea Boulevard Widening CD 10.3, 10.4, 10.5, 

27.2 
 PS 3.1 

7306 Imperial Hwy /SR-57 Interchange Improvements CD 10.1, 11.1, 11.6,  
27.1, 28.1 

CR 13.1 PS 3.1 

7308 Birch Street & Brea Boulevard Intersection Rehabilitation CD 4.3  PS 3.1 
7309 North Brea Boulevard Underground Utility District CD 4.2,  CR 10.1  
7310 Central Ave & Tamarack Ave Intersection Improvements CD 11.1, 11.6   
7312 Citywide Slurry Seal Program CD 1.12, 27.2   
7313 Citywide Sidewalk Replacement  CD 2.4, 13.2  PS 3.1 
7316 Alley Pavement Rehab – e/o Puente, n/o Joyce CD 1.12, 11.1   
7317 Cliffwood Industrial Park Pavement Rehabilitation CD 2.5, 11.1, 27.2   
7318 Kraemer Blvd & Lambert Road Rehabilitation (phase 3) CD 11.1, 27.2 CR 13.2  
7319 Alley Pavement Rehab – w/o Flower n/o Imperial Hwy. CD 1.12, 11.1, 27.2   
7320 Alley Pavement Rehab w/o Sycamore btwn Elm & Date CD 1.12, 11.1, 27.2   

 
STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS 

7522 Randolf Creek Restoration CD 15.1 CR 9.2, 9.3, 10.5, 
12.1 

PS 7.1 

7524 Catch Basin Inserts CD 15.2 CR 11.6, 12.2  
     



Shaded Area = New Project 
 

PROJECT 
NUMBER 

 
DESCRIPTION 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMUNITY 
RESOURCES 

PUBLIC 
SAFETY 

 
TRAFFIC SAFETY ENHANCEMENTS 

7212 Illuminated Street Name Sign Upgrade CD-17   
7218 Traffic Signal Controller Upgrade CD 2.3, 4.3, 11.1 CR 13.1  
7702 Regulatory Sign Replacement CD 2.3, 4.3, 11.1, 11.5   
7703 Street Name Sign Replacement CD-17   
7704 Emergency Changeable Message Signs CD 11.6   
7708 Central/State College Traffic Synchronization CD 2.3, 10.3, 11.1, 11.6 CR 13.1 PS 1.2, 1.5 
7709 Birch Street Traffic Signal Synchronization CD 2.3, 10.3, 11.1, 11.6 CR 13.1 PS 1.2, 1.5 
7710 Kraemer Boulevard Traffic Signal Synchronization CD 2.3, 10.3, 11.1, 11.6 CR 13.1 PS 1.2, 1.5 
7714 Imperial Highway Traffic Signal Synchronization CD 2.3, 10.3, 10.4, 11.6 CR 13.1 PS 1.2, 1.5 
7890 Opticom Traffic Control System CD 2.3, 10.3, 11.1, 11.6 CR 13.1 PS 1.2, 1.5 

     
 

WATER IMPROVEMENTS 
7442 Miscellaneous Water Improvement Program CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7452 Glenbrook Tract Waterline Improvements CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7453 Brea Financial Center Waterline Improvements CD 1.12, 2.5, 13.2, 14.2   
7454 Walnut-Orange Waterline Improvements CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7457 Pleasant Hill Tract Water Improvements CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7458 Napoli Tract Water Improvements CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7461 Cliffwood Tract Water Improvements CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7471 Construction of Carbon Canyon Booster Station 3 CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7473 Valencia Reservoir Repainting CD 27.2    
7466 South Brea Neighborhood Water Main Replacements CD 1.12, 13.2, 14.2   
7474 Automated Meter Reading Upgrade CD 1.12, 14.2   

     
     
     
     



Shaded Area = New Project 
 

PROJECT 
NUMBER 

 
DESCRIPTION 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMUNITY 
RESOURCES 

PUBLIC 
SAFETY 

 
SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 

7617 Sewer Main Relining CD 14.2   
7621 Randolf/Imperial & Lambert/St. College Sewer Mains CD 14.2, 27.2    
7624 Briarwood Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation CD 14.2, 27.2   
7626 South Brea Sewer Repairs CD 14.2, 27.2   
7627 Central Avenue 8” Sewer Main Upsize CD 14.2, 27.2, 27.3   

 
FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

7873 Tracks at Brea CD 1.7, 11.3, 12.5, 13 CR 1.6, 3.5, 6, 7, 
13.5 

 

7891 Civic Center Improvements CD 27.2   
7903 Super Block 1 Parking Structure CD 4.2, 26.1 CR 13.4 PS 3.1 
7909 ADA Strategic Plan for Public Facilities    
7914 Skate Park Upgrades CS 1.1 CR 1.1, 1.6  
7922 Arovista Park Slope Repair CD 1.12, 27.2   
7929 Lagos De Moreno Park Upgrades CD 9.6 CR 3.2  
7931 Civic Center 3rd Floor Remodel CD 18, 20, 23.6   
7932 Reclaimed Water Conversion Project CD 14.1, 14.2, 23.6 CR 11.4, 13.2  
7935 New Sports Park Playground CD 9.6 CR 1.1, 2.2, 3.6  
7936 Landscape Improvements at City Facilities & Medians CD 14.2 CR 11.4, 11.5, 12.2  
7939 Playground Surfacing at 9 Parks CD 9.6, 27.2   
7940 Arovista Park (West) Restroom Repairs CD 1.12   
7941 Fire Station 3 Metal Roof Replacement CD 1.12, 27.2   
7942 HVAC Component Replacement at Civic Center CD 27.2 CR 13.2  
7943 Brea Fitness Center Flooring Replacement CD 27.2   
7944 Senior Center Kitchen Enhancements CD 27.2   

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Section I 
 

Environmental Findings Completed 
 
7212 Illuminated Street Name Sign Upgrade   Categorical Exempt 
7218 Traffic Signal Controller Upgrade    Categorical Exempt 
7219 Traffic Calming Improvements    Categorical Exempt 
7251 57 / Lambert Road Interchange    Mitigated Negative Declaration 
7288 Randolph Avenue Rehabilitation    Categorical Exempt  
7309 North Brea Boulevard Underground Utility District Categorical Exempt 
7312 Citywide Slurry Seal Program    Categorical Exempt  
7313 Citywide Sidewalk Replacement    Categorical Exempt 
7318 Kraemer Blvd/Lambert Rd Pavement Rehabilitation  Categorical Exempt 
7453 Gemini Ave, Steele Drive Water Improvements  Categorical Exempt  
7454 Walnut & Orange Avenue Water Improvements  Categorical Exempt  
7457 Pleasant Hill Water Improvements   Categorical Exempt  
7461 Cliffwood Tract Water Improvements   Categorical Exempt  
7522 Randolph Creek Restoration    Categorical Exempt 
7524 Catch Basin Inserts      Categorical Exempt 
7617 Sewer Main Relining     Categorical Exempt 
7621 Randolph/Imperial & Lambert/State College    Categorical Exempt 
 Sewer Main Replacements 
7627 Central Avenue 8” Sewer Main Upsize   Categorical Exempt  
7704 Emergency Changeable Message Signs   Categorical Exempt  
7873 Tracks at Brea      Negative Declaration 
7890 Opticom Traffic Control     Categorical Exempt 
7903 Super Block 1 parking Structure    Mitigated Negative Declaration 
7935 New Sports Park Playground    Categorical Exempt  
7936 Landscape Improvements at Facilities & Medians Categorical Exempt  
 
Section II 
 

Environmental Findings To Be Done 
7305 Brea Boulevard Widening 
7306 Imperial Hwy / SR 57 Interchange Improvements 
7310 Central Ave & Tamarack Ave Intersection Improvements  
7316 Alley Rehabilitation East of Puente North of Joyce   
7317 Cliffwood Industrial Park Pavement Rehabilitation   
7473 Valencia Reservoir Repainting      
7624 Briarwood Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation    
7932 Reclaimed Water Conversion Project  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Section III 
 
 

Categorical Exempt Projects       
          Section 15301 
7278 Imperial Hwy & Berry Street Intersection Improvements Class 1 
7308 Birch St. & Brea Blvd Intersection Rehabilitation  Class 1 
7319 Alley Pavement Rehab – w/o Flower n/o Imperial Hwy  Class 1 
7320 Alley Pavement Rehab w/o Sycamore btwn Elm & Date Class 1 
7442 Miscellaneous Water Improvement Program   Class 1 (c & d) 
7452 Glenbrook Tract Water Line Improvement   Class 2 
7458 Napoli Tract Water Main Replacement     Class 2 
7466 South Brea Neighborhood Water Main Replacement  Class 2 
7471 Construct Carbon Canyon Booster Station 3   Class 2 
7474 Automated Meter Reading Upgrade    Class 2 
7626 South Brea Sewer Repairs      Class 1 (b)    
7702 Regulatory Sign Replacement     Class 1 (a) 
7703 Street Name Sign Replacement     Class 1 (a) 
7708 Central State College Traffic Signal Synchronization  Class 2 
7709 Birch Street Traffic Signal Synchronization   Class 1 
7710 Kraemer Blvd Traffic Signal Synchronization   Class 1 
7714 Imperial Highway Traffic Signal Synchronization  Class 1 (c) 
7891 Civic Center Improvements     Class 1 
7914 Skate Park Upgrades      Class 2 
7922 Arovista Park Slope Erosion Control    Class 7 
7929 Lagos De Moreno Park Upgrades     Class 1 (d) 
7931 Civic Center 3rd Floor Remodel     Class 1 
7939 Playground Surfacing at 9 Parks     Class 2 
7940 Arovista Park (west) Restroom Repair    Class 2 
7941 Fire Station 3 metal Roof Replacement    Class 2 
7942 Select HVAC Component Replacement at Civic Center Class 2 
7943 Brea Fitness Center Flooring Replacement   Class 2 
7944 Senior Center Kitchen Enhancements    Class 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          
Statutory Exempt Project 
 

 
7909 ADA Public Facilities Upgrade Strategic Plan   Section 15262 
 



raull
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4 - Goals and Policies Descriptions






































































	Agenda
	 Item 8 - _1163
	Att1_3.28.17 Minutes
	 Item 9 - Consideration of Addendum No. 16-01, TPM No. 2016-178, PD No. 16-04 and CUP Nos. 16-10 & 16-11
	Att1_ATTACHMENT 1.ENVIRONMENTAL MEMORANDUM, MARCH 16, 2017
	Att2_ATTACHMENT 2. RWG MEMORANDUM, APRIL 13, 2017 
	Att3_ATTACHMENT 3. CARBON MONOXIDE HOTSPOT MEMORANDUM
	Att4_ATTACHMENT 4. FBI VARIABLES AFFECTING CRIME MEMORANDUM
	Att5_ATTACHMENT 5. CORRESPONDENCE
	Att6_ATTACHMENT 6. FINDINGS
	Att7_ATTACHMENT 7. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	 Item 10 - Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 17-03 - American Tactical Defense
	Att1_1. Vicinity Map
	Att2_2. Public Hearing Notice
	Att3_3. Draft Resolution
	Att4_4. Plans and Desricption
	Att5_5. Project Business Plan
	 Item 11 - FISCAL YEAR 2017_18 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FINDING OF CONFORMANCE WITH THE GENERAL PLAN 
	Att1_1. Draft Resolution
	(i)   The Planning Commission of the City of Brea has heretofore reviewed, as required by Section 65401 of the Government Code, a list of projects being planned or constructed in the 2017 - 2018 Fiscal Year (FY) by the Capital Improvement Program (CIP...
	(ii)   All projects, as listed in Exhibit A, are located in the City of Brea and are consistent with policies of the City.
	(iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.
	B.  RESOLUTION.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Brea as follows, that:
	1.      In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution.
	2.   The 2017 - 2018 FY CIP as contained in the Draft Seven-Year CIP has been reviewed with particular regard to its conformity with the General Plan.
	3.   Said 2017 - 2018 FY CIP is in conformity with the General Plan, pursuant to Section 65401 of the Government Code.  The proposed CIP has been found to serve the implementation of various goals and policies of the General Plan as specifically outli...
	4.   This Resolution shall constitute this Commission’s report and recommendation to the City Council as required by the Government Code.
	5.   The Planning Commission also finds and determines that the projects identified in Exhibit A, Section III are categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act of 1970, as amended, and the guidelines promulgat...
	6.   The Secretary of this Commission shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and forthwith transmit a certified copy to the City Council, as the report required to meet California Government Code 65401.
	ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 25th day of April 2017.
	_____________________________
	Chairman, Planning Commission
	I, Jennifer A. Lilley, Secretary to the Planning Commission of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Brea held on the 25th day of April 2017, and...
	AYES:   COMMISSIONERS:
	NOES: COMMISSIONERS:
	ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:
	ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS:
	ATTEST:___________________________
	Secretary, Planning Commission

	Att2_2. General Plan Conformance
	Att3_3. Exhibit A
	Att4_4. General Plan Applicable Excerpts of Goals and Policies Descriptions 

